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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Group Strategic Report

The ditectors present the stiategic report for the year ended 31 Maich 2019
Principal activities

Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited (SOGWUK) opeiates as a holding company for certain European subsidiaries
of Sumitomo Corporation Japan and Osaka Gas Co. Ltd. The company owns 100% ordinary shares in East Surrey
Holdings (ESH), a company with investments in water and othet trading and property companies

The primary activities within the Group 1s to both supply water to domestic customers through SES Water (SESW), a
regulated public water supply company and to act as a retailer within the water and sewerage retail market for eligible
non-household customers through Sutton and East Surrey Water Services Limited (trading as SES Business
Water) The other smaller subsidiaries include Advanced Minerals whom source and process materials and minerals
and Allmat a locally based builders merchant in Kenley.

Sutton and East Surrey Water Plc (SESW)

SES Water (SESW) the largest company within the Group, supplies 160 million litres of clean water each day to
712,000 people in East Surrey, and parts of West Sussex, West Kent and South London  Some key highlights of
2019 include;

e  Despite some challenges like the hottest summer on record, SESW met the majority of its annual performance
commitments, including its leakage target for the 20% year running

e The water produced by SESW continues to be of the highest quality and good progress 1s being made towards
ensuring that every customer can be supplied by more than one treatment works

e Inthe year SESW moved to using 100% renewable electricity, mstalled more solar panels and welcomed 1ts
first electric vehicles nto its fleet

e Work started on a brand new website and customer billing system.

e The busimness plan for 2020 to 2025 which was developed mn partnership with SESW’s customets including
several industiy leading measures was submitted to OFWAT

SESW’s overall aim is to continue to be a well-run, respected and successful business SESW takes 1ts role of being
trusted to provide an essential public se1vice very seriously, and for SESW 1t 1s moie than just supplymng water but
wanting to play an activity part in the communities that we live within  SESW 1s a small local company and has been
deeply embedded n local communities for over 150 years. SESW has 5 key aims that each of its employees strives
to deliver through their roles within the company,

Aim 1 - To provide a reliable and sufficient supply of safe, high quality drinking water:

Planned nterruptions to supply are necessary so that SESW can improve the long-term restlience of the network by
replacing aging pipes However, performance in this area this year 1s laigely due to unplanned activity which cannot
be predicted, such as burst mams In May 2018 SESW experienced a large-scale burst in the Merstham area that
mmpacted around 1,000 customers for longer than the thiee-hour time period that our target is based on Histoiically
SESW have been amongst the best performers in the industry so although this year we have mussed the target due to
a single isolated 1ssue, however SESW’s customers ate still much less likely to expetience an inteiruption to their
supply compared to elsewhere in the country

Another area of historic strong performance 1s the number of burst mains, where the target has been met again. There
were more than the previous year, agam reflecting the challenging weathei conditions which puts stress on ground
conditions and pipes, but the still low number reflects the general good health of our netwotk and the work that goes
mto maintainming 1t, such as p1essure management and sustained mvestment.
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Quality water 1s of upmost importance and an achievement of 99 97% was met for the Oveiall Drinking Quality Index
mn 2018 Every year SESW carry our thousands of samples to ensute that the water leaving the tieatment works 1s of
high quality and 100% of compliance was achieved across all trteatment works and service reservoits

In 2018 SESW 1eceived 388 contacts — 38 more than the lun1t set — which means that SESW will mcur a penalty from
Ofwat of £1,000 per contact for everyone ovet the deadband of 375 — a total of £13,000. Whilst any penalty from the
regulator 1s disappointing, this still maintains a top three industry 1anking for the fourth year in a row and SESW weie
also industiy leading for taste contacts.

Aim 2 — Offer good value for money and keep bills at a fair and reasonable level:

With just 8% per cent of customets questioned feeling that their watet bill is not good value for money, this 1s well
within the target limit of 15 per cent The average household bill for 2018/19 mcieased by £5 - less than the rate of
inflation and equating to about 53 pence day — with money coming from bills playing a crucial part in the ongomng
mvestment programme

Most customers do not stiuggle to pay their bill but we recognise that for some people it can be a challenge, even
temporarily, so we are very pleased that now well over 10,000 eligible customers are in receipt of our Water Support
Scheme which provides a 50 per cent discount to those in genuine financial haidship We pledged to help 5,000 people
by 2020 but we reached this level thiee years ago and continue to welcome more people onto the tanff by mcieasing
ou1 activity to raise awareness of the support we can offer

Aim 3 — Increase the resilience of the network to drought, flooding and equipment failure:

SESW has had no restiictions on the use of watet this year Like other water companies, SESW depends on wintet
ramfall for the water we supply to out customeis as undei giound aquifers — rocks which act like a giant sponge — only
usually fill up between October and March when thete is less plant growth and evaporation October 2018 — the start
of the ctitical six month ‘techarge season’ - was dry, with only about half of the average ramnfall during the month,
however Novembei and December were wetter There was a dry spell again i January and just under average rainfall
levels m February March was very wet which brought overall winter rainfall to 96% of the long-term aveiage
However, gtoundwater resources have remained below average throughout the year which is largely due to the
significant demand experienced during the heatwave last year which significantly depleted resouices.

Since 2010 SESW has been progtessing a iesilience progiamme to enable the transfer of watet fiom Bough Beech
Treatment Works in Kent to the north of the area, which was pieviously completely reliant on groundwater supplies.
This means that by 2025 the aim 1s that every property can be supplied by more than one t1eatment woiks which is so
important to keeping customets’ taps running, particulatly duting outages and petiods of low rainfall A significant
step forward in this ambition this year was the completion of a 7.3km trunk main between Woodmansterne Tieatment
Wouiks and the town of Purley.

Aim 4 — Deliver consistently high levels of service:

Satisfaction with the overall water setvice SESW provides is extremely high and above target at 92 per cent This
scote is generated from ow household satisfaction survey which 1s completed by a 1andom representative sample of
400 customers durmg the year and asks about important topics like continuity of supply, pressure and taste

SESW continues to be measuted by Ofwat’s Setvice Incentive Mechanism (SIM), an industry customer setvice mettic
mntended to provide consistency of measutement acioss all companies The score is based on two factois — customets’
expertences when they have had to contact SESW and also the numbei of unwanted contacts and complaints 1eceived.

Regrettably, despite making steady piogiess this year, including achieving the highest ever quarteily billing score,
SESW has still finished in the bottom quartile of the national league table Essentially, taking both satisfaction taigets
mto account demonstrates that customets ate happy with theit water but SESW needs to peiform better when they

2



Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Group Strategic Report

have a need to contact them, such as about a change n circumstances or an operational problem SESW is now halfway
through a two-year customer experience transformation programme where focus remains on a number of key areas
intended to drive improvements, based on what our customers tell us 1s important, such as getting things right first
time evety time and mvesting mn our digital contact channels.

Another key mdicator of customer satisfaction is the number of complants recerved Disappomtmgly SESW has had
more than 1ts target limit but the downward trend over recent years has continued and is now at a four year low of 8 28
complaints per 1000 properties This demonstrates that the changes are being made such as mcreased traming and
simplified processes, are working despite.

Aim 5 — Reduce the impact on the environment while seeking to make a positive contribution to its quality:

Managing leakage 15 one of SESW’s customers’ top priorities  SESW has met its leakage target for the 20th successive
year SESW remamns one of the top performing companies m this area and 1s committed to domng even better 1n the
future with very challenging targets in the next business plan

SESW operates in a 1egion which 1s classified as being in serious ‘water stress’ due to the gtowing population and
Iimited resources which is why the water company has a target to reduce the amount of water per person that we need
to take from the environment Although SESW mussed this target this year due to the substantial summer demand,
there has been a significant increase in the number of water meters nstalled — over 10,000 — which 1s one of the most
effective ways to educate customets about their usage as they only pay for what they use

Another education activity 1s the work done with children and adults to mcrease the value that they place on thewr
water supply This ranges from school visits at omt Bough Beech Reservoir to spreading water-saving messages at
community events, all of which we know leads to small changes that can add up to big benefits SESW has reached
well over 11,000 people this year

Sutton and East Surrey Water Services Ltd (SESWS)
SESWS is the second largest operating company in the Group.

SESWS operates as two separate trading divisions SES Busmess Water and SES Home Services. SES Busimess
Water saw turnover rise substantially during the year as 1t contmued its strategy to add business water customets
outside of 1ts original mcumbent area. The business also took the decision during the year to invest i a new billing
system which 1s expected to be operational. This is expected to have the impact of reducing operating costs, improving
customer experience and assisting cash collection in the future

SES Home Services continued its drive to expand its 1evenues beyond its traditional insurance business It developed
new relationships with claims managers serving the customers of other msurance companies and also provided
services to the new busimess water maiket.

Key mdicators for Home Services include gross profit, the number of insurance policies sold and overhead costs For
Business Water gross margin acioss various segments, overheads and cash collection are key indicators Other current
key performance indicators mclude

e The first fix rate for plumbing and heating repair jobs
e The number of calls abandoned by the Contact Centre across both biands
o Business Water sales growth

The company is well positioned to continue to expand m the non-household water retail market in England and
Scotland. The Home Services division expects to capitalise on the changes it has made and grow significantly the
number of services and jobs it performs
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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Group (SOGWUK) Risks
The principal 1isks and uncertainties facing the Gtoup nclude;

¢  Cyber Attacks causmg mterfetence with opetational controls or loss of petsonal data, mitigated thiough
multiple layer security, controls and employee awaieness tramming

¢ Failwe to comply with legal and regulatory obligations, mitigated by formal processes for compliance with
matket codes (e g MOSL) dedicated resouices and mndependent assurance

*  Failure of economic regulation within SESW whete the company has msufficient funding to fulfil its duties,
mitigated by having a stable and tianspatent regulatoly 1egime, detailed business planning process includmg
consultation with customers and an effective relationship with OFWAT

e Cash Collection — particulaily within the non-household 1etail mairket that SES Business Water operates
within, mitigated through 1egulat reviews and cash collection proceduies

e Opeiational risks across the Group particularly within the opetational aiea of SESW and SES Home Seivices
employs gas and plumbmg engineers who wotk closely with gas on a regulai basis, mitigated by strong health
and safety protocol and training

¢ Impact of Biexit 1esulting in failuie of normal busiess opetations, mitigation thiough working closely with
Water UK within the water industry and wider sector, managing mventory levels and advance purchase of
electricity

Other 1isks that are closely monitored include,

¢ Investment risk - The key factor for the Group managing this risk 1s to mamtain and enhance the close
relationship with its customers and suppliets. The subsidiary undertakings continue to develop and provide
mnovative value added services at every stage of the supply cham

¢ Interest1ate and Liquidity risks - The Group adopts a policy of ensuiing the majority of its exposure to interest
rate changes on borrowings is on a fixed rate basis The majority of the interest rates 1isks are associated
with SESW and its index linked bond. SESW has controlled 1its ptincipal interest rate risk by issuing an
Index-Linked Bond, the interest rate on this Bond 1s 2 874% m addition to index-linkmg of the capital value
The Group manages its liquidity risk thiough the use of bortowing facilities with the Royal Bank of Scotland
as at 31st March 2019 SESW has a £25 million five-year revolving ciedit facility of which £11 5m remains
unutilised. This has subsequently been renewed to a £35m 5 yeat RCF. Within the year ESH borrowed £36m
fiom a private placement at 3 22% fixed 1ate and SESW repaid a £30m floating rate loan.

e Cunency risks - The Gioup does not use derivative financial insttuments to hedge 1ts exposwe to credit and
interest 1ate in the notmal course of its business  The Group has minimal exposure to curiency tisk since,
neatly all activities are conducted in the UK and all borrowings ate denominated in £ stetling

Financial Performance

The financial performance of the Group remamed positive this year with significant giowth seen in the retail non-
household matket Group Revenue for the yeat ended 31 March 2019 was £109 606m (2018. £91 822m) an increase
of 19.37%. Opetrating costs icreased to £92 759m (2018. £73.357m) with operating profit increasing to £18 477m
(2018 £18 465m)

Interest Charges increased by 3% to £11 994m (2018' £11 684m) This increase 1n mnterest 1s partly diiven by the
mcrease n indexation of £100m bond and partly due to a higher amount of the new loan part way through the year
In the yeat, as part of SESW’s de-gearing strategy a £30m loan was paid off and £36m of private placement funding
was raised m ESH (East Surrey Holdings) Limited

Group profit before taxation (PBT) was £9.833m (2018 £10 008m) and Profit After tax rteduced to £7.913m (2018.
£9 072m) Profit After Tax has lowered in the yeat primatily due to mcreased tax charges actoss the Gioup —relating
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to a prior year adjustment on to charges on the Corporate Interest Restriction (CIR) and an increased deferred tax
charge due to the mcrease n scale of capital progiamme delivered by SESW.

Capital Investment

The majority of the capital investment happens within SESW, where the company has continued with its five year
mvestment programme, £25 3 million was invested m new and replacement plant in the year (2018 £26 0 million)
The most significant proportion of this spend was mvested m the upgrade of the Woodmansterne Treatment works
which was commissioned ahead of the 31 March 2019 deadline, with full handover scheduled to happen later in 2019
SESW has also continued to nvest m the ongoing replacement of the pipers in its distribution network, mvesting £5 3
million targeted investment based on age, condition and performance of the existing network. Other mvestment of
£6 9 million continued acioss the network, primarily on the improvement of resilience mains to ensure that water can
be efficiently moved around SESW’s supply area £2m was nvested in pipes to supply new developments within the
supply area. The remamuing £7 0 million was spent n replacing equipment at the treatment works, pumping stations
and service reservours and other operational sites, mvesting in the ongoing metering programme and upgrading IT,
vehicles and laboratory equipment

Net Debt

Net term debt for the Group 15 £269.753m, an mcrease of £12.231m (2018 £257 522m). The mcrease represents a
new loan of £36m, £5 2m RPI indexation on the indexed linked bond, incremental utilisation of RCF loan £3m offset
by 1epayment of the Group’s £30m loan

Cash and hiquid resources icreased by £4.5m 1 the year to £26 946m (2018 £22 438m)

The level of gearing is a key ratio under the covenants associated with the £36 million loan and 1s measured by the
ratio of total net indebtedness to regulated asset value. The ratio as defined by our loan was 80% at 31 March 2019
which 1s within the 95% within our covenants  Interest cover 1atio was 2 207 which 1s within the Group’s permitted
range of greater than 1 1°1 0

In August 2018, ESH Limited converted preference shares - £12 384m 1ssued to SESW into ordmary shares, this being
an ter gioup fransaction, is eliminated n consolidated financial statement Additionally, ESH nvested proceeds
fiom Notes payable loan £36 million into SESW’s ordinaty shares

Dividends

Duimg the year the company paid dividends to its parent company Summut Water Limited (SWL) and Osaka Gas UK
Limited of £3 5 million (2018 £3 Smullion).

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Boaid

Director

Company Registration No 08369318
05 March 2020
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Directors’ Report

The directois present their directors’ 1epott and the audited consolidated financial statements for the yeat ended 31
March 2019

Directors
The directots who held office during the year and up to the date of signing ate as follows

S Kitajima

M Kobayashi (appointed 3 January 2019)
T Kamoi (appointed 1 April 2018)

K Oida (apponted 1 April 2019)

G Holman (1esigned 3 January 2019)

R Nishida (resigned 31 Maich 2019)

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has granted an indemnity to its directors against liability in respect of proceedings brought by third
parties, subject to the conditions set out in section 234 of the U.K. Companies Act 2006. Such qualifying third party
demnity provision remains in force as at the date of approving the directors’ teport.

Ownership of the company

Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited 1s 50% owned by Summit Water Limited (SWL), a company mcorpotated at
Vintners Place, 68 Upper Thames Street, London, EC4V 3BJ, and 50% by Osaka Gas UK Ltd (OGUK), a company
mcorporated at 13 Floot, Carrington House, 126 - 130 Regent Street, London, W1B 5SE.

Summit Water Limited Osaka Gas UK Limited

50% J, 503%

Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK
Limited

100%

East Surrey Holding Limited J, 80% - 100%

100% Hon Requlated Companies

I

SESW Holding Company Limited I —l

100%

Sutton and East Surrey Water Pic
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Group overview

The primary activities within the Group 1s to both supply water to domestic customeis through SESW, a regulated
public water supply company and to act as a retailer within the water and sewerage retail market for eligible non-
household customers through Sutton and East Surrey Water Services Limited (trading as SES Business Water) The
othet smaller subsidiaries include Advanced Minerals whom source and process materials and mmerals and Allmat a
locally based builders merchant in Kenley

Business review and future prospects

The Gtoup’s turnover for the year ended 31 March 2019 increased to £109,606,000 (2018 £91,822,000) The Gioup
profit before taxation was £9,833,000 (2018 £10,008,000).

Durmng the year, the company paid dividends to its shareholders, Summit Water Limited (SWL) and Osaka Gas UK
Limited (OGUK), of £3,500,000 (2018. £3,500,000)

SES Water Turnover increased to £66,832,000 (2018. £64,970,000), Operating costs mncreased to £48,362,000 (2018.
£45,085,000) as the company mvested in new capabilities to deliver on commitments made to customers.
Consequently, operating profit increased by £215,000 to £20,100,000 (2018 £19,885,000)

SES Business Water turnover incieased to £44,228,000 (2018 £28,935,000), mainly on account new customer
contracts

The United Kingdom is currently in a period of some economic and financial uncertainty following the Referendum
decision m favour of leaving the European Union The Group closely mvestigated the impact of Brexit alongside the
rest of the water mdustry. The main area of risk is around chemical supplies however, provisions have been put into
place to minimise disruption to the supply chain when the United Kingdom left the European Union on the 31 January
2020. While the Group expects the effect of Brexit to be limited, it will continue to monitor the situation during the
standstill period following Brexit unti] a trade deal 1s agreed with the European Union.

PR19 Update

In September 2018 SESW submitted its business plan to OFWAT for AMP 7 (2021-2025) On the 31 January 2019
OFWAT issued its ‘initial assessment’ of all water company plans which means categorising each one according to
its quality, ambition and mnovation There are four categories — exceptional, fast-track, slow-tiack and significant
scrutiny — and our plan has been given slow-track status We believe that our business plan 1s the best we have
submitted, and we developed our plan with our customers to deliver their priorities at a fair price with bills lower m
real terms than they are today Our focus now tuins to reviewing OFWAT’s assessment in motie detail, wotking with
them to ensure that we fully understand and address the areas that need further work while ensuring that our plan will
still deliver what matters most to our customers Re-submission of the business plan to OFWAT occurred on 29
March 2019

SESW, following receipt of the final determination from Ofwat on 16 December 2019, has notified the regulator that
1t will not be requesting a referral by Ofwat of the final determination to the Competition and Markets Authority
SESW has confirmed that this decision was reached primarily due to the positive response from Ofwat 1n its Final
Determination with respect to the majority of SESW’s key presentations, which 1esulted m an incieased totex
allowance m the majority of areas For the remaming totex funding gap, SESW will implement other funding solutions
to meet the challenging targets set by the Company to deliver owr customets’ priorities Please refer to the going
concern section 1n this diector’s report for additional information
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Research and development

Whilst the Group does not have a specific reseatch and development function, significant mnovation 1nitiatives
across the watet sectot continue to be reseatrched and implemented thiough a dedicated imnovation manager in
SESW Activity in 2018/19 included the development and trial of a highly innovative combmed smart meter and
valve which incorporates internet-of-things technology, the design and testing of a device to minimise water use on
empty properties and the implementation of artificial intelligence solutions to manage leakage

Charitable and political donations

During the year the Group made chatitable donations amountmg to £18,839 (2018 £13,244) Theie wete no political
donations (2018. £nil). The largest donation to UK charities was £5,000 to the Reigate and Banstead Junior Citizen
Scheme.

Greenhouse gas emissions

Greenhouse gas emissions are calculated using the UK Water industry Reseatch Catbon Accounting Workbook which
1s updated annually to reflect changes to emission factors and carbon teporting guidance from the UK Government
Opeiational greenhouse gas emissions m 2019 were 5,574 tonnes of catbon dioxide equivalent (tCO2eq) (2018-
22,597 tCO2¢eq), a 10% reduction on the previous yeat This equates to 71 kgCO2eq pet million lities of reated water
(2018 376 kgCO2eq)

The significant reduction in SESW greenhouse gas emissions i 2018/19 1eflects the Groups decision to purchase
100%

1enewable electricity with SESW from 1 June 2018 onwaids, as well as reduced use of gasoill SESW has solar
panels 1nstalled at five of our treatment wotks and this year has also installed solar panels at its head office In 2019
on-site renewable electricity generation was 211,561 kWh (2018. 201,188 kWh) and SESW have also mtroduced the
fiist electric vans in to our fleet.

Payment to suppliers

Settlement terms are agreed with suppliers as pait of the contract tetms and 1t 1s the Gtoup’s policy to pay in accordance
with these terms Other creditors are paid i accordance with invoice tetms. Within SESW, the largest company
within the Group, creditor days in the yea1 wete approximately 28 days (2018 30 days)

Employees

The Group's employees are fundamental to the success of the busmess, and ow achievements to date aie a result of
their hard work and determmation We ate confident that thewr ongomg commitment will ensuie we ate able to meet
future challenges We aim to be a responsible employer for whom people choose to wotk, and to ensuie that our
employees ate well trained, competent and motivated, while being appropriately rewaided for theit efforts. We
1ecognise that the health and safety of everyone who wotks for us ot 1s affected by our activities 1s critical to the
success of our business

Going Concern
The going concern basis has been adopted for prepating the financial statements

SESW the Group’s laigest company, recetved its PR19 final determination (FD) from OFWAT on 16 December 2019.
As pet the FD, OFWAT disallowed some of the ptoposed cost allowance To fund the disallowed cost, SESW will
have to raise additional funding m the going concern assessment period in the 1ange of £8m to £10m. Management is
m the process of evaluating vaiious alternate funding options with the Board and Shaieholdeis On the date of approval
of these financial statements, the additional funding 1equired is not in place Whilst management 1s confident, based
on 1ts existing banking telationships, recent bortowings and financial position, that the debt will be secured, theie can
be no certainty of obtaining the funding until confiimed by the lendets In case that SESW is unable to 1aise the
requuted debt there would be uncertainty ovet group’s ability to continue as a going concein
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Going Concern (continued)

In the absence of raising additional funding, management has evaluated other internal mitigation plans to meet the
funding requirements over next 12 months. Mitigation plans includes deferment of the dividend to the shareholders
and delay 1n certamn capital projects Additionally, in preparing for the FD, management obtamed a signed letter of
intent from its shareholders that they would provide financial support in the event of an extreme downside scenarto

As with any company placing reliance on other group entities for financial support, the directors acknowledge that
there can be no certainty that this support will continue although, at the date of approval of these financial statements,
they have no reason to believe that 1t will not do so

Considering the mitigation plans and undertaking from the shareholdets, the Directors are satisfied that the Group will
have sufficient funds to continue to meet 1ts habilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval
of the financial statements and therefore have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

On 19 October 2018, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary East Surrey Holdings Limited (ESH) entered mto a
Notes Putchase Agreement (“the agieement™) with Pacific Life 1n order to raise a loan of £36m Under the terms of
the Notes Purchase agreement, the subsidiary company ESH is required to deliver to the Note Holders copies of its
consolidated balance sheet and statement of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows within 120 days of the end
of your Financial year. This obligation was not met within 120 days or the year-end, which triggered the Event of
Default clause m the agreement, leading to the loan becoming repayable on demand Subsequently, the note holders
on 10 October 2019 extended the deadline for submission of Consolidated financial statement to 15 November 2019

ESH submutted the audited consolidated accounts with the Notes Holder on 14 November 2019, thus resolving the
position of default. Based on the above the directors believe it remains appropriate to prepare the financial statements
on a going concern basis

Post balance sheet events

On the 12 July 2019 SESW renewed 1ts Revolving Credit Facility with NatWest, increasing the available borrowings
from £25m to £35m

As noted mn the above, under the terms of the Notes Purchase agreement dated 19 October 2018, the company is
required to deliver to the Note Holders copies of its consolidated balance sheet and statements of mncome, shareholders'
equity and cash flows within 120 days of the end of your Financial Year. This obligation has not been met and therefote
there has been a breach of the obhgations under that clause which constitutes an Event of Default However, on 10
October 2019 the note holders warved this requuement until 15 November 2019 Subsequently, ESH has submitted
the audited consolidated accounts with the lender on 14 November 2019, thus complying with the waiver letter

SESW, following receipt of the final determmnation from Ofwat on 16 December 2019, has notified the regulator that
it will not be requesting a referral by Ofwat of the final determination to the Competition and Markets Authority
SESW has confirmed that this decision was reached primarily due to the positive response from Ofwat in its Final
Determination with tespect to the majority of SESW’s key piesentations, which 1esulted mn an increased totex
allowance in the majority of areas For the 1emaming totex funding gap, SESW will implement other funding solutions
to meet the challenging taigets set by the Company to deliver our customers’ priorities. Please tefer to the going
conceln section in this duector’s 1eport for additional mformation.

On 21 January 2020, the Boaid approved mterim dividend £1.75m for FY 19-20
Disclosure of information to auditor

The duectors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ teport confitm that, so far as they ate each
aware, there 1s no 1elevant audit information of which the Company’s auditot is unawate, and each director has taken
all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit mformation and to
establish that the Company’s auditor is awaie of that information
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Auditor

KPMG LLP 1s the auditot at the date of this report PricewatethouseCoopets LLP (“PwC”) will 1eplace KPMG LLP
following the appioval of these accounts at which time KPMG LLP will not seek reappointment. PwC will be
appointed by Duectots as auditor for the financial year ending 31 Match 2020 onwards, and theit appomntment is

subject to shaieholder approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Approved by the Boaid of Diiectors and signed on behalf of the Board

rectdi
S Kitajima Vintnets’ Place, 60 Uppet Thames Stieet
Duectot London
Company Registtation No' 08369318 EC4V 3BJ
05 March 2020 United Kingdom
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the annual report and the
financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the Group
and parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law they have elected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU) and applicable law and have
elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable
law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period. In
preparing each of the Group and parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
o make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant, reliable and prudent;

o for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the EU;

o for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e assess the Group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern; and

e use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent company
or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
parent company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent
company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such
steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited (“the company”) for the year
ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income, Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement, Company Balance Sheet, Company Statement of Changes in Equity and related notes, including the
accounting policies in note 1.

In our opinion:

o the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs
as at 31 March 2019 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended;

e the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union;

e the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting
standards, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

o the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are
independent of the group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis
for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements. We have nothing to report
in these respects.

Strategic report and directors’ report

The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on
our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial
statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

e we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;

e in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements; and

. inour opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion;

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

e the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited (Continued)

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 11, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; assessing the group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend
to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website
at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members, as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Anna Jones (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square
London E14 5GL
United Kingdom

06 March 2020
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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 March

2019 2018
Note £000 £000
Revenue 2 109,606 91,822
Operating cost 3 (92,759) (73,357)
Other operating mcome 3 1,630 -
Operating profit 18,477 18,465
Finance income 3,350 3,227
Finance expenses (11,994) (11,684)
Profit before tax 9,833 10,008
Taxation 7 (1,920) (936)
Profit for the year 7,913 9,072
Other comprehensive income
Remeasuements of defined benefit asset (3,960) (5,471)
Movement on deferted tax relating to net pensions assets 975 -
Exchange differences on translating foteign operations ) -
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,926 3,601
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holdets of the parent 4,763 3,480
Non-controlling interest 163 121

The notes on pages 18 to 53 form part of the financial statements
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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 March

2019 2018 2017
Restated* Restated*
Note £000 £000 £600
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 317,376 301,947 285,707
Intangible assets 9 116,143 116,741 117,644
Pension Scheme Asset 16,624 21,112 26,202
450,143 439,800 429,553
Current assets
Inventories 12 1,343 1,608 1,411
Trade and other receivables 13 32,900 28,117 22,440
Cash and cash equivalents 14 26,946 22,438 22,557
61,189 52,163 46,408
Total assets 511,332 491,963 475,961
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 40,939 35,227 31,739
40,939 35,227 31,739
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and 15 232,779 220,490 208,119
borrowings
Unfunded pension obligation 1,095 1,053 1,039
Deferred tax liabilities 11 35,879 35,979 35,857
269,753 257,522 245,015
Total liabilities 310,692 292,749 276,754
Net assets 200,640 199,214 199,207
Equity attributable to equity holders of
the parent
Share capital 18 164,550 164,550 164,550
Tianslation Reseive (D (H (H
Retamed earnings 35,495 34,232 34,252
200,044 198,781 198,801
Non-controlling interest 596 433 406
Total equity 200,640 199,214 199,207

*refer note 1 2
The notes on pages 18 to 53 form part of the financial statements

These finangia] statements were approved by the Board of Directois on 05 March 2020 and signed on 1ts behalf by.
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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Share capital Retained Translation Total parent  Non-controlling Total
earnings reserve equity interest
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2017 164,550 34,252 ) 198,801 406 199,207
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit or loss - 8,951 - 8951 121 9,072
Re-measurements of defined benefit asset - (5,471) - (5.471) - (5,471)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 3,480 - 3,480 121 3,601
Transactions with owners recorded directly 1 equity,
Drvidends paid - (3,500) - (3,500) (94) (3,594)
Total transactions with Owners - (3,500) - (3,500) (94) (3,594)
Balance at 31 March 2018 164,550 34,232 6)) 198,781 433 199,214
Balance at 1 April 2018 164,550 34,232 @) 198,781 433 199,214
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit of loss - 7,750 - 7,750 163 7,913
Re-measurements of defined benefit asset - (3,960) - (3,960) - (3,960)
Movement on deferred tax - 975 - 975 - 975
Translation Reserve - ) - (2) - @)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 4,763 - 4,763 163 4,926
Transactions with owners recorded directly n equity
Dividends paid - (3,500) - (3,500) - (3,500)
Total transactions with Owners - (3,500) - (3,500) - (3,500)
As at 31 March 2019 164,550 35,495 )] 200,044 596 200,640

This notes on pages 18 to 53 form part of the financial statements
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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March

2019 2018
Notes £000 £000
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit for the yeat 7,913 9,072
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization 8-9 10,701 10,880
Net interest receivable and similar charges 6 (3,350) (3,227)
Net mteiest payable and similar charges 6 11,594 11,684
Gains on sale of assets (532) (196)
Exchange differences ) -
Taxation 7 1,920 936
28,644 29,149
Increase n trade and other debtors (3,542) (5,677
Decrease/(Increase) in stocks 265 (197)
Increase in trade and other creditors 1,967 2,695
Increase in provisions and employee benefits 570 274
(740) (2,903)
Interest Paid (5,111) (5,060)
Tax Paid (756) (885)
Net cash from operating activities 22,037 20,299
Cash flows from investing operating activities
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 913 552
Interest recerved 277 45
Purchase of intangible fixed assets (685) 427
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (25,208) (26,146)
Net cash used in investing activities (24,703) (25,976)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans 9,000 8,350
Processing fees on loans (324) -
Dividends paid (3,500) (3,594)
Net cash from financing activities 5,176 4,756
Net increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,510 921)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 21,636 22,557
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 24,146 21,636
Relating to:
Cash and cash equivalents 26,946
Overdraft (included 1 cieditors less than one year) (2,800)
24,146

The notes on pages 18 to 53 form part of the financial statements
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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting policies
1.1 Basis of accounting

Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited (the “Company”) is a company mcorporated and domiciled in UK. The Company 1s
a private company limited by shates.

The Gioup financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referted to as the “Giroup”)
The parent company financial statements ptesent infor mation about the Company as a separate entity and not about its group

The Group financial statements have been ptepated and appioved by the directors m accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“Adopted IFRSs”). The Company has elected to prepate 1ts patent company
financial statements m accordance with FRS 101, these ate ptesented on pages 54 to 63

The accounting policies set out below have, unless other wise stated, been applied consistently to all periods presented m these
Group financial statements

Judgements made by the ditectors, i the application of these accounting policies that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment m the next year ate discussed i note 23

1.2 Restatement

The balance sheet as at 1 Aptil 2017 and 31 Match 2018 has been restated Thete is no change to the net assets and retained
earnings at 1 Aptil 2017 and 31 March 2018 as a result of the following presentational restatement.

In the prior year financial statements the pension asset and the defined benefit liability weie shown as a net balance of
£20,059,000 and £25,163,000 within current assets on the balance sheet as at 31 Mat 2018 and 1 April 2017 tespectively In
these financial statements comparative information has been restated to present the pensions asset of £21,112,000 and £
26,202,000 as at 31 Mar 2018 and 1 April 2017 and the defined benefit hability of £1,053,000 and £ 1,039,000 gross with
non-current assets and non-current liabilities, 1espectively This 1estatement ncteases non-cutrent assets by £21,112,000 as
at 31 Mar 2018 and by £ 26,202,000 as at 1 April 2017, reduces curtent assets by £20,059,000 as at 31 March 2018 and by
£25,163,000 and increases non-current liabilities by £1,053,000 as at 31 March 2018 and by £ 1,039,000 as at 1 Apiil 2017
with no change to net assets at 31 Match 2018 and 1 Aptil 2017.

1.3 New and amended Accounting Standards

The Group applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods begmning on
or after 1 April 2018 The Group has not early adopted any other standard, interpietation or amendment that has been issued
but is not yet effective

The natute and the impact of each new standard o1 amendment is described below

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contiacts with Customeis’ establishes a compiehensive fiamewoik for detetmining whethet, how
much and when revenue is recognised The Gioup adopted IFRS 15 in the year ended 31 March 2019 on a modified
rettospective approach The Group alieady recognises tevenue over the period in which the se1vice 1s delivered and theie has
been no matetial impact on profit on adoption of this standard The standard was applied using the cumulative effect method
and theiefore the compatative information has not been 1estated The only impact of the standatd was the recognition of a
contract liabilities balance as disclosed m note 16

IFRS 9 ‘Fmancial Instruments’ was adopted by the Group on | Apt1l 2018 on a modified 1etiospective appioach The adoption
of IFRS 9 has not tesulted in any significant changes to the Group’s existing accounting piactices, the Group has 1evised its
policy for providing for doubtful debt wheie debt 1s less than six months old, and now provides based on Expected Credit
Losses (“ECL’s”), further details of this policy ate provided in note 19 Thete has been no material impact on adoption of
this standard
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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting policies (continued)

1.4 Adopted accounting standards not yet applied

IFRS 16 ‘leases’ 1eplaces IAS 17 ‘leases’ and 1s effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019. The Group
will therefore adopt the standard on 1 April 2019 IFRS 16 details the recognition and measurement of lease arrangements mn
order to assess the amount, timing and certainty of cashflows as a result of leases The Group has reviewed its current plant
and equipment, whereby the majority of land, buildings, office equipment and vehicles are fully owned by the Gioup and
therefore any impact of IFRS is considered immaterial. There has been no impact m these financial statements.

1.5 Measurement convention

The financial statements are piepared on the historical cost basis unless otherwise stated in these notes to the financial
statements

1.6 Going concern
The gomg concern basis has been adopted for preparing the financial statements

SESW the Group’s laigest company, received its PR19 final determmation (FD) from Ofwat on 16 December 2019. As per
the FD, Ofwat disallowed some of the proposed cost allowance To fund the disallowed cost, SESW will have to raise
additional funding 1n the going concern assessment period m the tange of £8m to £10m Management 1s 1n the process of
evaluating various alternate funding options with the Board and Shareholdeis On the date of approval of these financial
statements, the additional funding 1equired 1s not i place Whilst management 1s confident, based on its existing banking
relationships, recent bortowings and financial position, that the debt will be secured, there can be no certamnty of obtaining
the funding until confirmed by the lenders In case that SESW 1s unable to raise the required debt, there would be uncertainty
over group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In the absence of 1aising additional funding, management has evaluated other internal mitigation plans to meet the funding
requirements over next 12 months Mitigation plans includes deferment of the dividend to the shareholders and delay in
certain capital projects. Additionally, m preparing for the FD, management obtained a signed letter of intent from its
shareholders that they would provide financial support in the event of an extreme downside scenario As with any company
placing reliance on other group entities for financial support, the directors acknowledge that there can be no certamnty that this
support will continue although, at the date of approval of these financial statements, they have no reason to believe that it will
not do so

Considening the mitigation plans and undertaking from the shaieholdes, the Ditectois are satisfied that the Group will have
sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the
financial statements and therefore have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis

On 19 October 2018, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary East Surrey Holdmgs Limited (ESH) entered mto a Notes
Purchase Agieement (“the agieement’”) with Pacific Life in oider to 1aise a loan of £36m Under the terms of the Notes
Purchase agreement, the subsidiary company ESH 1s required to deliver to the Note Holders copies of its consohidated balance
sheet and statement of income, shaieholders’ equity and cash flows within 120 days of the end of yowr Financial yeat. This
obligation was not met within 120 days or the year-end, which triggered the Event of Default clause i the agreement, leading
to the loan becoming repayable on demand Subsequently, the note holders on 10 October 2019 extended the deadline for
submission of Consolidated financial statement to 15 November 2019 ESH submitted the audited consolidated accounts
with the Notes Holder on 14 November 2019, thus 1esolving the position of default Based on the above the directors believe
1t remains appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis
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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.7 Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries aie entities contiolled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when 1t 1s exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those teturns through its powet over the
entity In assessing control, the Gioup takes into consideration potential voting 1ights that are currently exercisable. The
acquisition date is the date on which control 1s transferred to the acquiret. The financial statements of subsidiaiies are
mcluded n the consolidated financial statements fiom the date that control commences until the date that control ceases
Losses applicable to the non-controlling mterests mn a subsidiaty are allocated to the non-controlling intetests even if doing
so causes the non-contiolling mterests to have a deficit balance

Transactions elimmated on consolidation

Intta-group balances and tiansactions, and any unrealised income and expenses atising fiom mtia-group transactions, are
eliminated. Uniealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted mnvestees aie eliminated against the imvestment
to the extent of the Group’s interest 1n the investee. Uniealised losses ate elimmated m the same way as unrealised gains, but
only to the extent that there 15 no evidence of impairment.

1.8 Classification of financial instruments issued by the Group
Financial instruments 1ssued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the following two conditions

a) they mnclude no contiactual obligations upon the Group to deliver cash o1 other financial assets or to exchange
financial assets ot financial liabilities with another party under conditions that ate potentially unfavourable to the
Gioup, and

b) where the insttument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity insttuments, 1t 1s either a non-derrvative
that mcludes no obligation to deliver a variable number of the company’s own equity insttuments ot is a derivative
that will be settled by the company’s exchanging a fixed amount of cash o1 other financial assets fot a fixed number
of its own equity insttuments.

1.9 Classification of financial instruments issued by the Group (continued)

To the extent that this definution 1s not met, the proceeds of issue ate classified as a financial hability. Whete the msttument
so classified takes the legal form of the Company’s own shates, the amounts presented in these financial statements fo1 called
up share capital and share ptemimum account exclude amounts in relation to those shares.

1.10 Non-derivative financial instruments
Non-derivative financial insttuments comprise mvestments m equity and debt securities, trade and other 1ecervables, cash

and cash equivalents, loans and bortowings, and tiade and other payables

Trade and other recevables
Trade and other 1eceivables are recognised mitially at fait value. Subsequent to nitial recognition they are measured at
amortised cost usmg the effective interest method, less any impamrment losses

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables ate recognised initially at fau value Subsequent to mitial 1ecognition they ate measuted at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits
Interest-bearmmg borrowings

Interest-bearing bortowings are recognised initially at fair value less attiibutable tiansaction costs Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing boriowings aie stated at amoitised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment
losses
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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.11 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Tangible fixed assets are stated at deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost
mncludes the original purchase price of the asset and costs attributable to bringing the asset to 1ts working condition for 1ts
intended use The cost of assets mncludes ditectly attributable labour and overhead costs which are incremental to the
Company. The Company considers a substantial period of time for the construction of an asset in the water industry to be five
years

Tangible fixed assets are capitalised and depreciated when they are considered to be operationally complete, which means
that the asset is 1n the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner mtended by management.

Where parts of an item of tangible fixed assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate rtems of tangible
fixed assets.

Infrastructure assets — mains and fresh water reservoirs
Infiastructure assets comprise a network of systems relating to water distribution
Mains — repairs, maintenance and replacements

The mains network is considered to consist of multiple assets It consists of different areas and 1s capable of bemng separated
and divided up. IAS 16 requires all repairs and mamtenance to be charged to the profit and loss account Repaws and
maintenance include the day to day seivicing of an item. The costs of day-to-day servicing are primarily the costs of labour
and consumables and may include the cost of small parts. The mending of a burst main 1s considered to be a repair as long as
the subsequent work extends to the replacement of no more than one length of pipe The relining of a man 1s considered to
be maimntenance which 1s the work needed to keep a main in good condition.

IAS 16 requires replacements to be capitalised When more than one length of pipe 1s laid 1t 1s considered a replacement, and
not a reparr, and it is therefore capitalised.

Perished mains replaced during the period are disposed of from the fixed asset records

Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of
an 1tem of tangible fixed assets Freehold land is not depreciated The estimated useful lives aie as follows

Years
Infrastructure assets
Collection reservoirs 150
Water mains 100
Non- infrastructure assets
Buildings, boreholes and service reservoirs 40 - 100
Plant and machinery 10-25
Motor vehicles and sundry plant 3-15

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet date
1.12  Business combinations

All business combimations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method Business combimnations are accounted for
using the acquisition method as at the acquusition date, which is the date on which control 1s transferred to the Group

1.13  Intangible assets and goodwill
Goodwill

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses It 1s not amortised but 1s tested annually for impairment
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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.13 Intangible assets and goodwill (continued)
Research and development
Expenditute on 1esearch activities 1s recognised m the profit and loss account as an expense as mcuried

Expenditure on development activities 1s capitalised 1f the product ot process is technically and commercially feasible and
the Company 1ntends and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to complete development, future economic benefits
ate probable and if the Company can measuie reliably the expenditure attributable to the ntangible asset during its
development. Development activities involve a plan or design fot the production of new o1 substantially imptoved products
or processes. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of matetials, direct labour and an appropiiate ptoportion of
overheads and capitalised borrowing costs Other development expenditure 1s recognised n the profit and loss account as an
expense as incurred

Amortisation

Amortisation 1s chaiged to the mcome statement on a straight-line basis ovet the estimated useful lives of intangible assets
unless such Iives are indefinite Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and goodwill are systematically tested foi
mmpamrment at each balance sheet date. Other mtangible assets are amortised fiom the date they are available for use The
estimated useful lives are as follows.

Years
Contiacts 7-15
Software 3

1.14 Inventories

Inventor1es ate stated at the lower of cost and net 1ealisable value Cost 1s based on the first-in first-out principle and includes
expenditure mcurred i acquiring the stocks and other costs m bringing them to theit existing location and condition

An impaitment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrymg amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s ot1ginal effective mterest
1ate For financial istruments measured at cost less impairment, impairment is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount and the best estumate of the amount that the Company would receive for the asset if it were to be sold at the
teporting date Interest on the impaued asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to dectease, the decrease in imparment loss 1s reversed thiough profit
o1 loss.

115 Impairment excluding inventories and deferred tax assets
Fmancial assets (includmg recervables)

A financial asset not carried at fau value through piofit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to detetmine whether there
1s objective evidence that 1t 1s impaited. A financial asset 1s impaned if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has
occurred after the mitial 1ecognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset that can be estimated 1eliably

22



Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting policies (continued)
L.15  Impairment excluding inventories and deferred tax assets (continued)
Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than mventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there 1s any indication of impaitment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount 1s estimated. For goodwill, and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet
available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating untt is the greater of its value mn use and its fair value less costs to sell
In assessing value i use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset For the purpose of
mpairment testing, assets that cannot be tested mdividually aie grouped together mto the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from contimwing use that are largely independent of the cash mflows of other assets or groups of assets
(the “cash-generating unit”) The goodwill acquired in a business combmation, for the purpose of impairment testing, 1s
allocated to cash-generating units, or (“CGU”). Subject to an operating segment cetling test, for the puiposes of goodwill
imparrment testing, CGUSs to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment 1s tested
reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for mternal reporting purposes Goodwill acquired in a business
combination 1s allocated to groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination

1.16  Employee benefits

The Group accounts for pensions and other post-employment benefits under IAS 19(R). The Group operates both defined benefit
and defined contribution pension schemes Defined benefits are provided using both funded and unfunded pension plans

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account in
the period during which services are1endered by employees

Defined benefit plans

The penston scheme asset or liability in the balance sheet represents the net present value of the defined benefit obligation and the
fair value of scheme assets at the balance sheet date

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the cost of providing benefits under defined benefit plans is determined
on a triennial basis, and updated to each year end by an independent qualified actuary using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial
valuation method, discounted at an interest rate equivalent at measuiement date to the tate of return on a high quality corporate
bond of equivalent term and currency to the scheme liabilities

The pension cost in the income statement mcludes current and past seivice cost and the effect of any settlements and
curtailments A net finance charge or credit 1s recognised within finance costs in the income statement and comprises the net
of the expected return on pension scheme assets and the interest on pension scheme liabilities.

All actuarial gams and losses and the related current and deferred taxation are recognised in the statement of recognised
mcome and expense

1.17 Provisions

A provision 1s recognised m the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event, that can be reliably measured, and it 1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects risks specific
to the Liabality
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
1.18 Turnover and revenue recognition

The cote principle of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue fiom Contiacts with Customers’ 1s that an entity will 1ecognise 1evenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or setvices to customers i an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods ot services This core principle is delivered m a five-step model framework

1 Identify the contract with a customer

2. Identify the performance obligations m the contiact

3 Determine the transaction piice

4 Allocate the transaction price to the petformance obligations m the contract
5 Recognise 1evenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Revenue is 1ecognised when, o1 as, the peiformance obligations to the customer are satisfied Consideration recerved fiom
customers m advance of the petformance obligation bemg met and hence revenue bemng recognised 1s deferred and 1ecorded
as a contract liability. The element of charges that are 1aised that is consideted uncollectable at the point the chaige 1s raised
1s excluded from revenue

The Group has applied this framewoik to 1ts mcome streams as follows.
1 Water services

The Group has an obligation as an appomted Water Undertaker to provide water services to customers within its statutory
supply area, which is considered to constitute a contiactual arrangement with those customers (household customers). For
non-household supply, the Group’s customer is the 1elevant retailer. In this case thete is a contractual arangement with the
retailer through the competitive market arrangements run by MOSL.

The Group’s peiformance obligation is the continuous and ongoing supply of water services (and waste for non-household
customers) to the customers across 1ts entne network This is consideied to be one peiformance obligation and the
petformance of this obligation 1s matched to our customers recetving and consuming the benefits of our water services (and
waste services for non-household customeis)

The transaction price 1s the amount of consideration that the Group expects to receive n return for providing the water/waste
services, m this case being the amount which 1t has a right to teceive fiom billing customers for appointed water services

The billing basis diffets depending upon whether a customer has a meter (meteted supply) o1 not (unmetered supply) In
certain specific citcumstances, usually when we ate physically unable to fit a meter to the customer’s property, a customet
may be placed on an assessed chaige The process for revenue 1ecognition for customers on an assessed tatiff 1s the same as
that for unmetetred customets

For unmetered (unmeasured) supply of water services the amount of consideration to which the G1oup has a right to receive
1s based on the 1ateable value of the customer’s property as assessed by an independent rating officer. Revenue is tecognised
in a stiaight line over the course of a financial yeat, best tepresenting the Group’s petfoimance of its obligations throughout
that year in the absence of definitive information 1egarding individual unmetered customer’s usage

For metered supply of water / waste seivices, the amount of consideration to which the Group 1s entitled is determined by
actual usage by customets. The usage is detived fiom meter readings taken by the Gioup (o1 1ts contractors), which ate 1ead
at least twice pe1 yeat Revenue includes an estimate of the watet/waste se1vices charges unbilled at year end.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
1.18 Turnover and revenue recognition (continued)

2 Non water mcome

The Group provides a number of services to developets to assist them with connecting new properties and other property
development to our water network Details of developer services charges ate available on the Company’s website and
described below-

a ) Requisitions

Requisitions relate to the Group laying new mains (and associated mnfrastructure) i order to enable a developer to link their
new property to the network Essentially the work 1s the extending of the water network to serve the new property and 1s
separate from the actual connection of the property to the network itself

b ) Service connections

Service connections are paid by developers when they want to connect (ot re-connect) a property to our network. The chaige
is an mit1al application fee for which the customer 1s provided with a quote for the work to be undertaken (directly related to
the estimated cost to the Group) Customers are required to pay in advance fo1 a connection, thus creating a contract

There 1s a contractual arrangement between the Group and the customer to supply the new connection based on the quote
price, with the Group’s performance commitment being to connect the property the Group’s network

The ultimate transaction price is the quote, adjusted for the actual cost to the Group to the work, with revenue being recognised
once the job has been completed and the property has been connected to the Group’s netwotk

¢.) Diversions

Diversions are when we move our assets at the request of a developer or another party. These are contractual arrangements
with the Group’s performance commitment being to complete the diveision Revenue is therefore recognised based on the
agreed price when the diversion work has been completed

d ) Infrastructure charges

Infiastructure charges are paid by developers when a new connection 1s made to our network The charges are designed to
cover the cost of network enhancement work 1n order to accommodate the additional demand from the new connection, such
that this enhancement cost is not borne by existing customers. The chatge 1s due when a new connection 1s made

The requirement to pay an nfrastructure charge for new connections 1s in the Water Industry Act and so the arrangement
with a developer 1s considered a contract The Group considers 1ts performance obligation to be delivered by the connection
to the network Whilst the charge 1s to cover demand diiven enhancements to the network, it does not relate to specific projects
or the resultant assets. In addition, the contractual arrangement for the infrasttucture charge 1s between the Group and the
developer who 1s not necessarily the party that will ultimately benefit from the connection through ongoing water service (the
occupier of the property)

The transaction ptiice 1s the amount of consideration the Gioup expects to receive given that the infiastructute chaige per
connection 1s set each year as a fixed price (based on the historic amounts spent on related network enhancements over the
pievious five years)

It 1s considered that there 1s one performance obhgation, therefore, there 1s no splitting of the transaction price into sepaiate

elements relating to different obligations. That obligation is considered to have been met when the new connection is made
and so revenue 1s recognised at that pomnt
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118 Turnover and revenue recognition (continued)
3. Non-appomnted 1evenue

Within SESW, the Gioup’s latgest company, thete ate a number of income streams from 1its non-appointed business,
including.

a ) Commussion income fiom another regulated water and wastewater company (providing sewetage setvices to the majority
of our customeis) when we collect monies fiom owr customets on their behalf The Company acts as an agent through a
contractual arrangement, which sets the transaction price and with the pei formance obligation being the collection of the debt
and tiansfer to the other company. The commission 1s paid based on the amount of debt actually collected, with the Company
recognisimg the revenue when the petformance obligation 1s satisfied

b.) Income fiom the Company’s gatage, which provides setvicing, tepan and MOT facilities to thud patties Revenue 1s
recognised when the woik has been completed, with the customer settling then bill when they collect then vehicle

c.) Empty Properties

Empty unmeasuted properties are not billed 1f the Company has been informed n writing that the supply 1s not required and
the Company is able to attend and turn off the supply Empty metered pioperties aie billed standmg charges only Metel
reading continues for the purpose of highlighting consumptions so that volume charges can be billed when the occupier has
been identified Disconnected commercial properties ate not billed If a household property 1s unoccupied due to the customer
being hospatalised o1 residing in care, and we ate informed of this in writing, the property 1s not billed

New pioperties are charged from the date a meter 1s installed, if consumption is bemg recorded on the meter If the property
1s unoccupied but consumption 1s being registered, the developer will be billed. The developer 1emains 1esponsible for a
property until handover details have been provided

If a property 1s recorded as empty in the billing system, an empty property process 1s followed The purpose of this process
1s to verify whether the property 1s occupied o1 1s genuinely empty and, if occupied, to identify the person or persons
tesponsible for charges and 1aise a bill The empty ptoperty p1ocess may involve electronic services using third party data as
well as visits to the propetties. No bills ate 1aised under the name of the ‘occupier’

d ) Sale of products

In addition, revenues arise from the sale of plumbing and heating inswance by Home Services (ftading as Sutton and East
Suriey Water Setrvices), the sales from building supplies within Allmat and the sales of minerals used n the manufacturing
process within Advanced Minetals  All 1evenue 1s 1ecotded at the time that the performance obligation to the customer 1s
satisfied, normally when the product 1s tiansferted to the customer.

The Group considers whether theire are other promises in the contiact that aie sepaiate peiformance obligations to which a
portion of the transaction piice needs to be allocated (e.g., wartanties) In determining the transaction price for the sale of
products, the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-
cash consideration, and consideiation payable to the customer (if any)

Bad debt write-off policy

Outstanding balances on customers’ accounts ate notmally written-off as bad debts only when the customer can either no
longer be located, all means of 1ecovery have been exhausted o1 the cost of tecovery 1s consideted to be disproportionate to
the value of the debt
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1.19  FExpenses
Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases ate recognised i the mcome statement on a stiaight-line basis over the term of the
lease. Lease mcentives received are recognised 1n the income statement as an mtegral part of the total lease expense.

Fmancmg income and expenses

Financmg expenses comprise interest payable, finance charges on shares classified as habilities and finance leases recognised
m profit or loss using the effective mterest method, unwinding of the discount on provisions, and net foreign exchange losses
that are 1ecognised 1n the income statement (see foreign currency accounting policy). Borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial time to be prepared for use, aie
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset Financing income comprise interest receivable on funds invested, dividend income,
and net foreign exchange gains

Interest ncome and interest payable 1s recognised m profit or loss as 1t accrues, using the effective interest method Dividend
income 1s recognised in the mcome statement on the date the entity’s right to receive payments is estabhished Foieign
curiency gains and losses are 1eported on a net basis

1.20 Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax Tax 1s recognised mn the profit and loss account,
except to the extent that it relates to items recogmised directly i equity or other comprehensive income, 1n which case 1t 1s
recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted o1
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reportmg
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The initial recognition of goodwill 1s not provided for The amount of
deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabalities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that futuie taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised

1.21 Dividends

Dividends are only recognised as a habulity at the date of the balance sheet to the extent that they are declared prior to year-
end Unpaid dividends that do not meet these criteria are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
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2 Revenue

The allocation of business activities into segments teflects the Group’s activities which is in line with internal management
tepotting and 1eflects the Group’s focus on its cote and non-cote activities

The reportable segments ate as follows

- Suiton and East Surtey Watet Plc (‘SESW’) being the Group’s cote activity — engaged 1n principally supply of
watei across the London Borough of Cioydon, Merton and Sutton, as well as East Surrey and parts of Kent and
Sussex

- Sutton and East Suttey Water Services Limited (‘SESWS?) t/a SES Business Water and SES Home Services
provides water and seweirage retail services (in England and Scotland) and services for plumbing, heating and
insurance actoss the south east of England.

- Othet non-cote entities engage m minetal processing, building materials supply and property tentals.

March 2019 Revenue  Profit for the year Total assets  Total liabilities
£000 £000 £000 £000
SESW 66,832 7,489 377,646 242,415
SESWS 44,228 (991) 14,997 12,859
Non-Core 6,954 307 197,938 46,363
Reportable segments 118,014 6,805 590,581 301,637
Corporate 100 (19) 165,527 63
Elimination/consolidation
adjustments (8,508) 1,127 (244,776) 8,992
Total 109,606 7,913 511,332 310,692
March 2018 Revenue  Profit for the year Total assets  Total liabilities
£000 £000 £000 £000
SESW 64,970 9,465 359,696 273,671
SESWS 28,935 (664) 13,427 10,278
Non-Core 6,874 837 7,601 2,195
Reportable segments 100,779 9,638 380,724 286,144
Corpotate 50 309 123,071 18,437
Elimination/consolidation
adjustments (9,007) (875) (11,832) (11,832)
Total 91,822 9,072 491,963 292,749

All 1evenue of the Group 1s generated within UK and Eutope.

In accordance with IFRS 15, ievenue has been disaggiegated based on

a. Nature of revenue — the nature of 1evenue with the key items being the supply of water - £92,963k (2018 £74,341k),

non-watet mcome - £14,432k (2018. £15,363k) and non-appointed 1evenue - £2,211k (2018. £2,118k)

b. Timing of tevenue tecognition
- Products and se1vices transferred at a point m tume - £109,606k (2018 £91,822k)
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3 Expenses and auditor’s remuneration

2019 2018

£000 £000
Wages and salaries 15,361 14,310
Social security costs 1,654 1,563
Other pension costs 2,950 2,228
Raw material and consumables 44,856 28,558
Depreciation of owned assets 9,418 9,558
Amortisation of mtangibles 1,283 1,322
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (532) (196)
Operating lease payments — other assets 142 159
Audit fee — parent 38 32
Audit fee — subsidiaries 164 177
Non-audit fees 126 5
Other operating charges 16,899 15,241
Management support and Service Agreement 400 400
Total operating costs 92,759 73,357
Total operating cost can be analyzed as follow 2019 2018

£000 £2000
Cost of sales 74,239 56,217
Other administration cost 18,520 17,140
Total 92,759 73,357

Wages and salaries disclosed above are shown net of capitalised costs During the year £1,266,870 (2018 £1,647,689) of
employment costs were capitalised as fixed assets

No other fees wete paid to KPMG LLP (2018 Nil)
Other operating income £1,630,000 mainly mcludes income from an msurance claim receivable
4 Remuneration of directors

Directois’ 1emunerations and pensions aie borne by affiliates of the shaieholders in the current and previous year. No
remuneration was paid to the directors during the period n respect to their services to the company (2018 mi)

Drrectors do not have share options and did not receive awards during the year i the form of shates under long-term mcentive
schemes (2018. nil)

No pension benefits are accruing to any directors (2018 nil).
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The average numbei of petsons employed by the Group
(including ditectors) duting the yeat were as follows

1 April 2018 -
31 March 2019

1 April 2017 -
31 March 2018

Number Number

Water supply 297 290
Other activities 100 100
397 390

The aggregate payroll costs of these peisons wete as follows.

1 April 2018 -
31 March 2019

1 April 2017 -
31 March 2018

£000 £000

Wages and salaries 15,361 14,310
Social secutity costs 1,654 1,563
Expenses related to defined benefit plans 2,950 2,228
19,965 18,101

6 Finance income and expense

Recognised in profit or loss

1 April 2018 -
31 March 2019

1 April 2017 -
31 March 2018

£000 £000
Finance income
Expected return on pension scheme assets 3,073 3,182
Interest recervable and similar income 277 45
Total finance income 3,350 3,227

1 April 2018 -
31 March 2019

1 April 2017 -
31 March 2018

£000 £000
Finance expense
Interest payable:
Bond - intetest 3,166 3,005
- indexation 5,160 5,570
Total cost of bond 8,326 8,575
Interest on post tetitement liabilities 2,559 2,541
Othet loans 1,109 568
Total interest payable and similar charges 11,994 11,684
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Recognised in the income statement

1 April 2018 -
31 March 2019

1 April 2017 -
31 March 2018

£000 £000
UK corporation tax
Current tax on income for the period 490 677
Adjustments 1n respect of prior period 555 137
Group current tax charge 1,045 814
Deferred tax
Origination of timing differences 1,083 590
Adjustments in 1espect of prior period a1 -
Movement in timing differences due to change m tax rate
and laws - 98
Pension scheme 7 (566)
Total deferred tax 875 122
Tax charge on profit 1,920 936

The 2019 adjustments m respect of prior years relates mamly the £500k (2018 £Nil) provision included for tax charges that

may be mcurred under the Corporate Interest Restriction

Factors affecting future tax rate

A reduction mn the UK corporation tax rate from 20% to 19% (effective from 1 April 2017) was substantively enacted on 26
October 2015. A further reduction to 18% (effective from 1 April 2020) was also substanttvely enacted on 26 October 2015
with an additional reduction to 17% (effective from 1 April 2020) being substantively enacted on 6 September 2016. This
will reduce the Company’s futute curtent tax chaige accordingly The deferred tax liability at 315 March 2019 has been

calculated based on these rates.
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7 Taxation (continued)
Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The current tax chatge fot the year 1s higher (2018. lower) than the standard 1ate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%
(2018 19%). The differences are explained below.

2019 2018

£'000 £'000
Profit for the year 7,913 9,072
Total tax (credit) / expense 1,920 936
Profit excluding tax 9,833 10,008
Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 19% 1,868 1,902
Effect of
Expenses not deductible fo1 tax purposes 161 (1)
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (292) (33)
Striking off Dormant companies - profit nontaxable for tax purposes - (380)
Capital allowances m excess of depteciation (838) 831)
Caprtalised expenditure allowed on accounts basis (204)
Pension adjustment 72 (167)
Adjustments to tax chaige n respect of previous petiod 429 137
Tax loss not utilised in current period - 185
Othet adjustments (151) 2
Deferred Tax 875 122
Total tax expense 1,920 936
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8 Property, plant and equipment

Group Land Collection Building, Plant& Water Motor Under Total

reservoir boreholes & machinery mains vehicles construct
service & sundry -ion
£000 reservoirs plant
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost

At 1 April 2017 5,089 2,276 97,759 45,721 130,364 4,366 15,868 301,443
Additions - - 1,888 3,481 4,757 1,496 14,525 26,147
Disposals - - 197) (2,062) (42) (1,477) - (3,778)
Translation i i i i ) 7 i 4
adjustments

At 31 March 2018 5,089 2,276 99,450 47,140 135,079 4,392 30,393 323,819
At 1 April 2018 5,089 2,276 99,450 47,140 135,079 4,392 30,393 323,819
Additions - - 4,072 5,849 13,601 1,680 - 25,202
Disposals - - (252) - - (189) - (441)
Translation ) ) i 6 ) ) ) 6
adjustments

At 31 March 2019 5,089 2,276 103,270 52,995 148,680 5,883 30,393 348,586
Depreciation

At 1 April 2017 - 104 7,882 2,772 4,658 320 - 15,736
Charge for the year - 21 2,265 4,636 1,481 1,155 - 9,558
Disposals - - (64) (2,043) (15) (1,300) - (3,422)
At 31 March 2018 - 125 10,083 5,365 6,124 175 - 21,872
At1 April 2018 - 125 10,083 5,365 6,124 175 - 21,872
Charge for the year - 20 2,275 4,680 1,520 923 - 9,418
Disposals - - (6) - - (74) - (80)
At 31 March 2019 - 145 12,352 10,045 7,644 1,024 - 31,210
Net book value

At 31 March 2018 5,089 2,151 89,367 41,775 128,955 4,217 30,393 301,947
At 31 March 2019 5,089 2,131 90,918 42,950 141,036 4,859 30,393 317,376

Land comprises freehold land at £4,793,000 (2018. £4,793,000) and long leasehold land at £5,000 (2018 £5,000).
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9

Intangible assets
Software  Contracts* Purchased Work in Total
goodwill Progress
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
Balance at 1 Apnil 2017 1,202 7,376 112,546 419 121,543
Additions duting the petiod 427 - - 427
Disposal (82) - - - (82)
Transferted fiom undet 61 - - 61) -
constiuction
Balance at 31 March 2018 1,608 7,376 112,546 358 121,888
Balance at 1 Aptil 2018 1,608 7,376 112,546 358 121,888
Additions duting the petiod - - - 685 685
Disposal - - - - -
Transferted fiom under 85 - - (85) -
consttuction
Balance at 31 March 2019 1,693 7,376 112,546 958 122,573
Amortisation
Balance at 1 Apiil 2017 286 3,613 - - 3,899
Charge for the year 455 867 - - 1,322
Disposal 74) - - - (74)
Balance at 31 March 2018 667 4,480 - - 5,147
Balance at 1 Apiil 2018 667 4,480 - - 5,147
Charge for the year 416 867 - - 1,283
Disposal - - - - -
At 31 March 2019 1,083 5,347 - - 6,430
Net book values
At 31 Maich 2018 941 2,896 112,546 358 116,741
At 31 March 2019 610 2,029 112,546 958 116,143

* Contracts 1elates to future income fiom operational contiacts in existence at the time of acquisition
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9 Intangible assets (continued)
Amortisation and nmparrment charge

The amortisation charge is recognised in the following line items in the income statement No impairment or reversals
of previous impairments was charged during the year:

1 April 2018 - 1 April 2017 -

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£000 £000

Operating costs 1,283 1,322

Impairment test for Goodwill

The main investment owns is in Sutton and East Surrey Water plc (SESW), which is a regulated public water company via
an intermediay holding company ESH Assets which arose from the ESH acquisition cannot be tested mdividually and are
grouped together mto the smallest group of assets (ESH Group CGU) that generates cash mflows from continuing use that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets Consequently, Goodwill and contracts that are
considered significant m comparison to the Group’s total carrying amount of such assets have been allocated to CGU unit as
follows

Goodwill Contracts
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
ESH Group Cash Generating Unit 112,546 112,546 2,029 2,896

The recoverable amount of CGU has been calculated using the fair value less disposal cost (FVLDC) model as opposed to
the Value in Use (VIU) The VIU model was not used as it requires certain adjustments which we do not consider appropriate
for a regulated UK watet company The key assumptions of this calculation are shown below

Key assumptions 2019 2018
Last financial period included mn approved forecast 2044 2043
Exit RCV multiples 1.175 1175
Peer WACC (Discount Rate) 5 40% 525%
Exit cost estimated 1% 1%

Management has used an approved forecast period of greater than five years because 1t 1s customary practice for UK water
industry The recoverable amount for the CGU using the FVLDC model was estimated at approximately £444m The
carrying amount of the CGU as at 31 March 2019 amount to approximately £397m resulting in headroom of £47m
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9 Intangible assets (continued)
Sensitity analysis

The water industiy operates in five-year cycles known as Asset Management Plan (AMP) petiods. For each five-yeai petiod
Ofwat fixes the amount that water companies are allowed to chat ge their customers and sets the standards of service that each
company must deliver The ‘package’ of price and services standards, known as Ofwat’s Final Detetmination (FD), was
formally accepted by the Group in Februaty 2015 (PR14) and February 2020 (PR19) therefore water tariff fiom 2015 — 2020
(AMP6) and 2021-2025 (AMP7) 1s fixed Considering the stability of the water mdustry, the headroom will be most affected
by changes in operating expense

We have cartied out a sensitivity analysis of the headioom under the base case and the downside scenatio by sensitising the
assumption on changes in opelating expense

- Assuming 1 5% of opex underperformance m AMP7 decieases the headroom by £2 2m
- Assuming 1.5% of opex underperformance for all AMPs decreases the headroom by £7 9m
- Assuming 0 5% increase in WACC to 5 90% decreases the headioom by £35.6m

In addition, we have carried out a sensitivity analysis of the headroom under the base case and PR19 FD scenario by sensitising
the assumption on allowed revenue and costs for AMPS8 in line with the PR19 FD 1esults which Group accepted in Feb 2020,
m order to assess the impact by the subsequent event

- Assuming PR19 FD allowed 1evenue and costs in AMP7. decteases the headroom by £14 4m
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10 Investments in subsidiaries

The Company has the following mvestments i subsidiaries

Subsidiary undertakings

The registered address for all investments other than The Calcite Factory BV (Holland) 1s 66-74 London Road, Redhull,
Surrey, RHI 1LJ All investments other than The Calcite factory BV ate registered and operate n England and Wales The

registered address and operations for The Calcite BV is Prodock, 9 Mozelhavenweg, Amsterdam

The principal activities for all nvestments are as follows

Name of Company Activity Class of Ownership
shares
2019 2018
Directly held:
East Surrey Holdings Limited Holding Company Ordinary 100% 100%
Indirectly held:
Sutton and East Surrey Water plc Water supply Ordmary 160% 100%
Preference 0% 100%
SESW Holding Company Limited Holding Company Ordmary 100% 100%
Preference 0% 100%
Sutrey Downs Property Investment Piroperty Investment Ordinary 100% 100%
Limited
Surrey Downs Estates Limited Property development Ordinary 100% 100%
Allmat (East Surrey) Limited Building supplies Ordinary 100%  100%
Advanced Minerals Limited Aggregates and the import and Ordmary 80%  80%
sale of bathroom equipment
The Cheam Group plc Holding company Ordmary 100% 100%
Preference 79%  19%
Sutton and East Surrey Water Water — non household Ordinary 100% 100%
Services Limited
The Sutton District Water plc Dormant Ordinary ‘A’ 100% 100%
SES Home Services Limited Non-trading Ordinary 100% 100%
SES Business Water Limited Non-trading Ordmary 100% 100%
SES Water Limited Non-trading Otdmary 100% 100%
Calcite Factory BV Minerals processing Ordmaty 80% 80%
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11 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and labilities

Deferred tax assets and lhiabilities are attributable to the following’

As at 31 March Assets Liabilities
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Property, plant and equipment 23 37 33,301 32,304
Other timing difference 39 - - -
Employee benefits (pension) - - 2,640 3,712
Balance carried forward 62 37 35,941 36,016
Movement i deferred tax during the year
1 April Recognised  Recognised 31 March
2018 in income in OCI 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
Property, plant and equipment (32,267) (993) - (33,260)
Other Timing difference - 21 - 21
Employee benefits (pension) (3,712) 97 975 (2,640)
(35,979) (875) 975 (35,879)
Movement in deferred tax during the prior year
1 April Recognised 31 March
2017 in income 2018
£000 £000 £000
Property, plant and equipment (31,577) (690) (32,267)
Employee benefits (pension) (4,280) 568 (3,712)
(35,857) (122) (35,979)
12 Inventories
As at 31 March 2019 2018
£000 £000
Raw materials and consumables 618 854
Work in progtess 250 246
Fmished goods for 1esale and otheis 475 508
1,343 1,608
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13 Trade and other receivables

As at 31 March 2019 2018
£000 £000
Trade recervables 28,735 23,549
Other 1eceivables 2,458 2,264
Prepayments and accrued mcome 1,707 2,304
32,900 28,117

Movements in the expected credit losses provision were as follows
2019 2018
£000 £000
At1 April 2,312 1,911
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 1,099 23
Amounts written off during year 291 378
Other 17 -
At 31 March 3,719 2,312

At 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the Group had no trade recetvables that were past due and not individually impaired

The ageing of trade receivables at the balance sheet date was as follows.

2019 2018
£000 £000
Not past due 6,649 5,546
Past due 0-30 days 5,216 3,294
Past due 31-120 days 3,002 2,540
More than 120 days 13,868 12,169
28,735 23,549
The aged analysis for expected credit losses fo1 1eceivables past due not individually impaired is
Aged less Aged between Aged between  Aged greater Total
than 6 6 and 12 12 and 48 than 48
Trade receivable months months months months
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2019 85 1,059 1,765 810 3,719
At 31 March 2018 112 617 1,338 245 2,312
14 Cash at bank and cash equivalents
As at 31 March 2019 2018
£000 £000
Liquid 1esources — deposits exceeding 24 houts duration 13,821 14,845
Cash and cash equivalents per balance sheet 13,125 7,593
26,946 22,438

Within bank balances there 1s £5,334,565 (2018. £5,196,086) of restricted cash relating to the secuted index-lked bond.
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15 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the conttactual terms of the Group’s mterest-bearing loans and bortowings, which are
measuted at amortised cost For more information about the Group’s exposuie to mterest rate and foreign cutrency 1isk, see

note 19,

Non-current liabilities

As at 31 March 2019 2018

£000 £000

Long-tetm loan 49,176 40,500

2 874% Secured Index-Linked Bond 2027-2031 183,501 179,888

3 25% Irredeemable debentures 50 50

5% Irredeemable debentures 52 52

232,779 220,490

Changes m liabilities from financing activities
Bond Bond
3.25% 5%
Itredeemable Irredeemable £1002’0£70‘;$: costs Other loans Total
debentures debentures (2027-2031)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2018 50 52 185,625 (5,737) 40,500 220,490
Changes from financing activities

Indexation - - 5,160 - - 5,160
Amortisation of bond cost - - - 447 - 447
Repayment of £30m loan - - - - (30,000) (30,000)
New 1ssue £36m PP - - - - 35,676 35,676
Other bortowings - - - - 3,000 3,000
Amortization of bond revaluation - - (1,994) " - (1,994)
Balance at 31 March 2019 50 52 188,791 (5,290) 49,176 232,779
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16 Trade and other payables

As at 31 March 2019 2018
£000 £000

Current
Trade payables 4,447 4,106
Other trade payables 18,469 22,843
Related Party Payable (Summit Water Limited) 240 240
Overdraft 2,800 802
Contract Liabilities 7,410 -
Depostts from developers 1,013 903
Other taxes and social security 648 802
Corporation tax 649 356
Non-trade payables and accrued expenses 5,263 5,175
40,939 35,227

Contract liabilities

Group 2019
£000
Opening balance as at 1 April 2018 7,092
Revenue recognised that was included n the contract liability balance at the begmning of the period (7,092)
Increase due to cash received, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the period 7,410
At the end of the year, 31 March 2019 7,410
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17 Employee Benefits

One of the Group undertakings participates in a defined benefit pension scheme, the Water Companies Pension Scheme
(WCPS) The scheme funds are administered by ttustees and ate independent of that Company’s finances Contiibutions are
paid to the scheme in accordance with the recommendations of an independent actuarial advisor

Following extensive consultations, changes wete implemented to that Group’s section of WCPS on 1 April 2013, whereby
retuement benefits for active members will be accrued on a career average basis rather than the final salary basis applicable
pteviously

The 1esults of the actuatial valuation of WCPS as at 31 March 2017 weie updated to the accounting date by an independent
qualified actuary in accordance with the accounting standatd

Ovei the yeat to 31 Maich 2019, contributions of £673,000 (2018 £845,000) were made
In 31 March 2019 financial statements, SESW provided £0.6m for the estimated impact of Guaranteed Minimum Penston
(GMP ) This was as a tesult of the high court ruling that occuried on the 26 Oct 2018 for the trustee of the Lloyds Banking

Group pension scheme setting precedent to remove mequalities in scheme benefits that arose fiom Guaranteed Minimum
Pension (GMP) This was to equalise pension payments for members who were paying into the scheme for a 7-yeat petiod in
the 1990°s

On 31 March 2019, SESW closed the defined benefit pension scheme

The key IAS 19 (R) assumptions used fo1 the scheme are set out below, along with the fair value of assets, a bieakdown of the
assets mto the main asset classes, the present value of IAS 19 (R) liabilities and the surplus of assets above IAS 19 (R) hiabilities
(which equal the gtoss pension asset)

Assumptions

As at 31 March 2019 2018

Retail piice index inflation 3 5% pa 3.4% pa
Consumer price index inflation 2 8% pa 2 7% pa
Discount rate 2 3% pa 2 5% pa
Pension mcreases (CPI) 2 8% pa 2 7% pa
Pension ncreases (CPI capped at 5%) 2 8% pa 2 7% pa
Salary gtowth n/a 2 9% pa

On the basis of the assumptions used for life expectancy, a male pensionei curtently 60 would be expected to live for further
28.8 years (2018 28 3 years)

As at 31 March 2019 2018
Fair value Fair value

£000 £000

Equities - 9,155
Diversified growth funds - 17,794
Liability driven investment 89,719 85,501
Emei1ging market multi-asset funds - 6,555
Absolute Return Bonds 34,891 -
High Yield Bonds - 5,816
Cash - 368
Total 124,610 125,189
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17 Employee Benefits (continued)

The majority of the Section assets are held within mstruments with quoted market prices in an active market The Section
does not mvest in property occupied by the Gioup or in financial securities 1ssued by the Group

The investment strategy 1s set by the Trustee of the Section The current strategy 1s to invest in a combimation of lower risk
assets (e g liability driven investments, which 1espond to factors such as changes n interest rates) and return seeking assets
(e g equities and other diversified assets) with the allocation to lower risk assets gradually increased so that by March 2035,
100% of the Section assets are mvested in lower risk assets.

Charges 1n the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows:

As at 31 March 2019 2018

£000 £000
Opening defined benefit obligation 104,077 103,406
Employet’s patt of current service cost 881 974
Past service costs 600 -
Interest cost 2,533 2,516
Contributions from Section members 10 19
Actuarial loss 5,123 2,690
Benefits paid (5,238) (5,528)
Closing defined benefit obligation 107,986 104,077

Changes in the fair value of the Section assets are as follows.

As at 31 March 2019 2018

£000 £000
Opening fair value of the Section assets 125,189 129,608
Interest on Section assets 3,073 3,182
Actual return less interest on plan assets 1,221 (2,749)
Contributions by the employer 673 845
Contributions by Section members 10 19
Benefits paid (5,238) (5,528)
Expenses (318) (188)
Closing fair value of Section assets 124,610 125,189
As at 31 March 2019 2018

£000 £000
Total fair value of assets 124,610 125,189
Present value of liabilities (107,986) (104,077)
Pension asset for the scheme 16,624 21,112
Unfunded former directors’ pension entitlement (1,095) (1,053)
Net pension scheme asset 15,529 20,059
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17 Employee Benefits (continued)

Asset distribution and expected return

The net asset has not been 1educed in the Balance Sheet as the Group believes that a 1efund of the surplus assets would be

available to 1t followmg the final payment to the last beneficiary of the Scheme.

Past service losses totalling £1,095,000 (2018 £1,090,000) wete recognised in prior years in 1espect of an unfunded portion

of a former Duectois’ penston entitlement This figure has been revalued using the same assumptions as above

The surplus recognised m the Balance Sheet has moved over the year as follows

As at 31 March 2019 2018

£000 £000
Balance Sheet asset at start of year 21,112 26,202
Amount recognised 1n profit and loss account (1,259) (496)
Amount recognised in othet comprehensive mcome (3,902) (5,439)
Contiibutions paid 673 845
Balance Sheet asset for the scheme at end of year 16,624 21,112
Unfunded pension liability at acquisition (1,095) (1,039)
Past service cost - (14)
Net Balance Sheet asset at end of year 15,529 20,059

The following amounts have been tecognised in profit and loss.

2019 2018

£000 £000
Employei1’s part of cutient setvice cost 881 974
Past setvice costs 600 -
Section Expenses 318 188
Net interest ciedit (540) (666)
Total operating charge 1,259 496

The amounts recognised immediately m other compiehensive mcome ate as follows

2019 2018

£000 £000
Net actuatial gains in the year due to
— Changes 1n financial assumptions 4,559 2,889
— Changes in demogiaphic assumptions 985 -
— Experience adjustments on benefit obligations 421) (199)
Actual (loss)/gain on Section assets telative to mterest on (1,221) 2,749
Section assets
Gain to recognise outside profit and loss 1 other comprehensive 3,902 5,439
income
Loss on unfunded former Directots’ pension entitlement 58 32
Total remeasurement of deferred benefit asset recognized in 3,960 5,471

other comprehensive income
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17 Employee Benefits (continued)

The following table 1llustiates the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to some of the significant assumptions as at 31

March 2019-
As at 31 March Effect on obligation
2019 2019
(£000) (£000)
-0 1%pa +0 1%pa
Price inflation (1,400) 1,400
Discount rate 1,700 (1,700)
-lyear +lyear
Lafe expectancy (4,500) 4,500
As at 31 March 2018 Effect on obligation
2018 2018
£000 £000
-0.1%pa +0 1%pa
Price mflation (1,400) 1,400
Discount 1ate 1,600 (1,600)
-1 year +1 year
Life expectancy (4,100) 4,100

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement 1n the defined benefit obligation m isolation, and assuming
no other changes i market conditions at the accounting date. This 1s unlikely m practice — for example, a change 1n discount

rate 1s unlikely to occur without any movement m the value of the assets held by the Section
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18 Capital and reserves
As at 31 March 2019 2018
£000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
329,100,002 (2018 329,100,002) oidnary shares of £0 5 each 164,550 164,550
Diwvidends
The following dividends were paid during the petiod
2019 2018
£000 £000
£0.01 (2018 £0 01) per qualifying ordinary share 3,500 3,500

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per

share at meetmgs of the company
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19 Financial instruments
19 (a) Fair values of financial instruments

The table below analyses financial instruments, into a fair value hierarchy based on the valuation technique used to
determine fair value

. Level 1. quoted piices (unadjusted) i active markets for identical assets or hiabilities

. Level 2* mputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, either
directly (1 e, as prices) or indirectly (1 ¢ , dertved from prices)

. Level 3 mputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The fair values of all financial hiabilities, whose fan value materially differ from there carrymg value, by class together with
therr cartymg amounts shown m the balance sheet are as follows.

Carrying Fair  Level 1 Carrying amount Fair Level 1
amount value value

2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost
2 874% secured index-linked bond 183,501 233,419 233,419 179,888 217,535 217,535
2027 -2031
Long Term loan 49,176 - - 40,500 - -
Total financial mstruments 232,677 233,419 233,419 220,388 217,535 217,535

Farr value 1s determined using a quoted market bid price where available or otherwise based on discounted expected future
principal and interest cash flows There 1s no material difference between fair values and carrying amounts within the balance
sheet for all other financial assets and liabilities
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19 Financial instruments (continued)
19 (b) Credit risk

The Group does not use detrvative financial instiuments to hedge its exposuie to credit and mterest 1ate 1isks arising in the
normal course of its business

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to ctedit risk 1s monitored on an ongoing basis Investments are
only permitted m hquid secutities and only with counterparties that have a credit rating equal to or better than SESW. Given
their high credit ratings, management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations

Ciedit risk arises principally fiom trading (the supply of se1vices to customers), the Group does not believe 1t 1s exposed to
any material concentrations that could have an impact on its ability to continue as a gomg concern or its longei -term viability

The Group manages 1ts risk fiom trading through the effective management of customer relationships. Concenttations of
credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the majority of the Gioup's customer base bemg comprised of
a large numbei of untelated households ot, for other services, a wide number of trade customers

At the balance sheet date thete were no significant concentiations of ciedit 1isk.
19 (c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the 1isk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due

The following ate the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments:

31 March 2019
Total contractual 1 year toless 1 to <5 years irs and over

cash flows
£000 £000 £000 £000
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Loan and other boriowing 13,500 13,500 - -
Debentures 102 - - 102
Tiade and other payables 33,384 33,384 - -
Interest 1ate - 2.874% secured index-linked bond 281,030 4914 21,175 254,941
2027-2031*
Intetest 1ate — 3 22% 43,583 1,159 4,637 37,787
371,599 52,957 25,812 292,830

* mcludes expected index value of bond on matutity and intetest payable thereon till matwity

31 March 2018

Total 1 year 1to 5 years
contractual to less <5 years and over
cash flows

£000 £000 £000 £000

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Loans and othe: borrowings 64,823 - 10,500 54,323
Debentures 102 - - 102
Trade and other payables 35,227 35,227 - -
Interest Rate — 2 874% 100,000 - - 100,000
Interest Rate — 3.22% 30,000 - 30,000 -
230,152 35,227 40,500 154,425
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19 Financial instruments (continued)
Undrawn committed borrowing facilities

Undrawn borrowing facilities available to the Group are set out below The facilities available at the balance sheet date are
unsecured.

As at 31 March 2019 2018
£000 £000
Expiring in one year or less 1,000 1,000
Expirmg in more than one year but not more than two years - -
Expiring in more than two years but not more than five years 11,500 14,500
12,500 15,500

19 (d) Market risk

Financial risk management

Market risk 1s the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect
the Group’s imncome or the value of its holdings of financial mstruments.

Market risk — Foreign currency risk

The Group does not have any exposure to currency risk simce all activities are conducted in the UK and all borrowings ate
denomimnated 1n £ sterling

Market risk — Interest rate risk

The Group adopts a policy of ensuring the majority of its exposure to mterest rate changes on borrowings is on a fixed rate
basis

The long dated inflation-linked bond was issued at a rate of interest of 2.874% The index-linked nature of the bond reflects
the index-lmked regulatory asset value and pricing structure The bond issue carried an AAA rating The bond 1s index-linked
so that the capital sum and interest payment increase with RPI

The indexation chaige is treated as an interest cost but does not have any immediate cash flow impact on the Group The
bond was 1ssued on 21 March 2001 and is secured upon the shares of Sutton and East Surrey Water plc In the event of
default, the interest and capital payments are insuted by Assured Guaranty Ltd.

The bonds, debentures and piefetence shates ate at fixed 1ates of interest Borrowings made under the curtent oveidraft
facilities will be at a variable rate above base rate, and longer-term borrowings will be at a margmn above LIBOR

The ESH loan of £36m is at a fixed interest 1ate and therefore doesn’t attract any interest 1ate 11sk
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19 Financial instruments (continued)
19 (d) Market risk — Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitvity analysis

A change of 100 basis points in intetest rates at the balance sheet date would have increased (decieased) equity and piofit ot
loss by the amounts shown below This calculation assumes that the change occuried at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to risk exposuies existing at that date

This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant and considers the effect of financial insttuments with variable
mterest rates. The analysis 1s performed on the same basis for 2018.

1 April 2018 — 31 1 April 2017 —
March 2019 31 March 2018
£000 £000

Equity
Inciease - -
Decrease 2,092 1,949

Profit or loss
Increase - -
Decrease 2,092 1,949

19 (e) Inflation risk

The Group earns an economic return on its RCV, comprising a real return through revenues and an inflation 1eturn as an
uplift to 1ts RCV  Curtently, the Group’s tegulatory assets are linked to RPI inflation, however, following Ofwat’s decision
to transition to the use of CPIH for flation indexation for the 2020-25 regulatory petiod, ftom 2020 the Group’s RCV will
be 50 per cent linked to RPI inflation and 50 per cent linked to CPIH inflation, with any new additions being added to the
CPIH portion of the RCV

The Group believes this 1s an appiopriate inflation hedging policy taking into account a balanced assessment of the following
factors' economic hedge of the Groups RCV and 1evenues; cash flow timing mismatch between allowed cost of debt and the
Group's mcurted cost of debt, the inflation risk premium that 1s genetally incorporated mnto nominal debt costs; mcome
statement volatility, hedging costs, debt maturity profile mismatch risk, and index-linked hedging positioning relative to the
water sectol

The carrymg value of index-linked debt held by the Group was £159 93million at 31 March 2019 (2018' £154 323 mullion)
19 () Capital management

The fundamental principles of the Gioup’s capital management are to mantam an appiopriate level of capital and debt and
equity balance to manage business risk for the purpose of maintaining management soundness and efficiency and to promote
continuous growth,

The Gioup aims to maintain a gearmg level of approximately 65%
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20 Operating leases

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

As at 31 March 2019 Land and Other 31 Mar
Buildings 2019
£000 £000 £000
Less than one year 170 15 185
Between two and five years 91 6 97
261 21 282
As at 31 March 2018 Land and Other 31 Mar
Buildings 2018
£000 £000 £000
Less than one year 135 26 161
Between two and five years 353 - 353
488 26 514
21 Commitments
As at 31 March 2019 2018
£000 £000
Contracted capital commitments 13,300 16,976
Other commitments 7,000 7,000

Other capital commitments are for a £7m Letter of Credit from HSBC which 1s used as a guarantee for post payment terms
with wholesalers within the water and sewerage competitive retail market for eligible non-household customers
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Identity of related parties with which the Group has transacted

Group had tiansactions with subsidiaries of Sumitomo Corporation, the ultimate patent company of Summit Water Limited.
Summit Water Limited owns 50% of the Gioup.

Sales to Administrative
xpenses incurred
from
1 April 2018 - 1 April 2017 - 1 April 2018 - 1 April 2017 -
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Shaieholders - . 400 400
Other related parties - - 37 72
- - 437 472
31 March Receivables Outstanding ables outstanding
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Shareholdets - - 240 240
Other 1elated parties - 11 22 6
- 11 262 246

Transactions with key management personnel
The compensation of key management petsonnel’

As set out in note 4 and 5, the average number of peisons employed by the patent company durmng the year 1s nil (2018 nil)
As also noted, no remuneiation was paid to ditectors during the year (2018 £nl)

23 Key Accounting Judgements

In the process of applying its accountmg policies set out m Note 1, the Group is 1equited to make certain estimates,
judgements and assumptions that it believes are 1easonable based on the information available These estimates, judgements
and assumptions affect the carrymg value of assets and expenses 1ecognised during the reporting petiods presented and actual
results may diffetr fiom these estimates The following 1s a list of accounting estimates the Gtoup believes ate ciitical, due to
the degree of uncertainty regarding the estumates, judgements or assumptions involved and the magnitude of the asset ot
expense being reported

Capital Expenditure

The appiopriate 1ecognition of costs between opetating expenses and capital expenses 1s a key judgement area which can
have a significant impact on both the Group’s profit and balance sheet. The Gioup has detailed policies m place to determine
whether expenditure should be capitalised and these policies ate teviewed on a 1egular basis by the Diiectors
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23 Key Accounting Judgements (continued)
Defined benefit scheme

The appropriateness of the accounting estimates and disclosures for the benefits provided to employees through the Group
Companies’ Pension Scheme — the Commuittee concluded that the estimates applied by the Group’s actuarial advisors m
calculating the annual cost and valuing the assets and habilities associated with the defined benefit obligation were within
the range typically adopted for prudent provisions n the current economic environment

Goodwill

Goodwill 1s assessed annually for impairments by analyzing the net present value of the groups future cashflows. To date, no
impairments have been made and the cashflows are in excess of the value of goodwill as at the date of these statements For
sensitivity results refer note 9.

Expected credit losses management

An expected credit losses provision 1s established by applying expected recovery rates to debts outstanding at the end of the
accounting period. The expected recovery 1ate takes into account the age of the debt and the payment history. A significant
level of judgement is needed in relation to the assumptions used n the calculation to predict the level of future cash collection.
Collection performance for debt over one year 1s closely monitored and remains consistent with the basis of the provision
made

Sensitivity analysis

A +/-5% movement n aged debt results in £315,380 movement i the expected credit losses provision This analysis assumes
that all other variables remamn constant and considers the effect of financial mstruments with variable interest rates.

24 Post Balance Sheet Events

On the 12 July 2019 SESW renewed its Revolving Credit Facility with NatWest, increasing the available borrowings from
£25m to £35m.

As noted in the Ditector’s report, under the terms of the Notes Purchase agreement dated 19 October 2018, the company 1s
required to deliver to the Note Holders copies of a its consolidated balance sheet and statements of income, shareholders'
equity and cash flows within 120 days of the end of your Financial Year This obligation has not been met and therefore there
has been a breach of the obhigations under that clause which constitutes an Event of Default However, on 10 October 2019
the note holders waived this requirement until 15 November 2019  Subsequently, ESH has submitted the audited
consohidated accounts with the lender on 14 November 2019, thus complying with the watver letter

SESW, following receipt of the final determination from Ofwat on 16 December 2019, has notified the regulator that it will
not be requesting a referral by Ofwat of the final determination to the Competition and Markets Authority. SESW has
confirmed that this decision was reached primarily due to the positive response fiom Ofwat 1 1ts Final Determination with
respect to the majority of SESW’s key ptesentations, which resulted mn an increased totex allowance in the majority of
areas. For the 1emaming totex funding gap, SESW will implement other funding solutions to meet the challengmg targets
set by the Company to deliver ow customets’ priorities Please refer to the gomg concern section for additional
mformation

On 21 January 2020, the Board approved mterim dividend £1 75m for FY 19-20
25 Parent undertaking and ultimate parent undertaking

The group is 50% owned by Summit Water Limited, a company incorporated at Vmtners Place, 68 Upper Thames Stieet,
London, EC4V 3BJ, and 50% owned by Osaka Gas UK Limited, a company incorporated at 1st Floor, Cartington House,
126 - 130 Regent Street, London, W1B 5SE There are no parent undertakings and no party has control of the group.
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2019 2018
Note £000 £000
Fixed assets
Investments 32 161,600 161,600
161,600 161,600
Current assets
Debtors 33 1,064 1,075
Cash at bank and in hand 2,863 2,844
3,927 3,919
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 34 63 37
Net current assets 3,864 3,882
Net assets 165,464 165,482
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 35 164,550 164,550
Profit and loss account 914 932
Shareholders’ funds 165,464 165,482

The notes on pages 56 to 63 form part of the financial statements
These financial statements were appioved by the Boaid of Directois on 05 March 2020 and signed on 1ts behalf by.

S Kitajima
Duector

Compa /Reglstratlon No' 08369318
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Called.up Profit & loss Total
share capital
£000 £000 £000
Balance brought forward 1 April 2017 164,550 954 165,504
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit retained for year - 3,478 3,478
Total comprehensive income for the year - 3,478 3,478
Dividend paid - (3,500) (3,500)
Total transactions with Owners - (3,500) (3,500)
Balance carried forward 31 March 2018 164,550 932 165,482
Balance brought forward 1 April 2018 164,550 932 165,482
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit retained for year - 3,482 3,482
Total comprehensive income for the year - 3,482 3,482
Dividend paid - (3,500) (3,500)
Total transactions with Owners - (3,500) (3,500)
Balance carried forward 31 March 2019 164,550 914 165,464

The notes on pages 56 to 63 form part of the financial statements
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26 Accounting policies
Basis of accounting
Sumisho Osaka Gas Watet UK Limited (the “Company™) is a company ncorporated and domiciled m the UK

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework (“FRS 1017).

In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measutement and disclosuie
tequitements of International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“Adopted IFRSs”), but makes
amendments where necessary n oider to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set up below where advantage of
the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken

Under section s408 of the Companies Act 2006 the company 1s exempt fiom the tequirement to ptesent its own profit
and loss account. The company’s profit for the yeat ended 31 March 2019 1s £3,482,000 (2018°£ 3,478,000)

The company 13 50% owned by Summit Water Limited, a company mcorporated at Vintners Place, 68 Upper Thames
Street, London, EC4V 3BJ, and 50% owned by Osaka Gas UK Limited, a company incorporated at Ist Floor,
Carrington House, 126 - 130 Regent Stieet, London, W1B 5SE Thete are no parent undertakings and no party has
contro! of the company

In these financial statements, the company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 1n respect of the
following disclosuies

« A Cash Flow Statement and 1elated notes,

»  Comparative period teconciliations for share capital, intangible assets and investment properties;
»  Disclosures 1n 1espect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries;

»  Dusclosuies n 1espect of capital management,

+  The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs,

«  Dasclosures 1n respect of the compensation of Key Management Personnel.

The Company proposes to contmue to adopt the reduced disclosure fiamewoik of FRS 101 in its next financial
statements

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements

Going Concern
The going concern basis has been adopted for preparing the financial statements

As noted 1n duectot’s report, SESW the Group’s laigest company, tecetved its PR19 final determination (FD) from
OFWAT on 16 December 2019. As pet the FD, OFWAT disallowed some of the proposed cost allowance To fund
the disallowed cost, SESW will have to 1aise additional funding in the going concern assessment period in the range
of £8m to £10m Management 1s in the process of evaluating vatious alternate funding options with the Board and
Shareholdeis On the date of appioval of these financial statements, the additional funding requued 1s not in place
Whilst management 1s confident, based on its existing banking relationships, recent bortowings and financial position,
that the debt will be secured, there can be no certamnty of obtaming the funding until confirmed by the lenders In case
that SESW is unable to raise the requued debt, thete would be uncertainty ovet group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

In the absence of raising additional funding, management has evaluated other internal mitigation plans to meet the
funding requitements over next 12 months Mitigation plans includes deferment of the dividend to the shareholders
and delay in certain capital projects Additionally, i pieparing for the FD, management obtamed a signed letter of
intent from its shareholders that they would provide financial support m the event of an extteme downside scenario
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26 Accounting policies (continued)
Going Concern (continued)

As with any company placing reliance on other group entities for financial support, the directors acknowledge that
there can be no certainty that this support will continue although, at the date of approval of these financial statements,
they have no reason to believe that 1t will not do so.

Considering the mitigation plans and undertaking from the shareholders, the Directors are satisfied that the Group
will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its habilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements and therefore have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis

As noted in the director’s report, under the terms of the Notes Puichase agreement dated 19 October 2018, ESH 1s
required to deliver to the Note Holders copies of its consolidated balance sheet and statements of income,
shareholders' equity and cash flows within 120 days of the end of your Financial Year. This obligation has not been
met and therefore there has been a breach of the obligations under that clause which constitutes an Event of
Default However, on 10 October 2019 the note holders waived this requrement until 15 Novembe

2019. Subsequently, ESH has submitted the audited consolidated accounts with the lender on 14 November 2019,
thus complymg with the waiver letter

Investments
Investments 1 subsidiaries and associates are stated at cost less any provision for impairment

All other mvestments including investments held as current assets are stated at fait value Changes m fair value are
recognised through other comprehensive income, until the security 1s disposed of or 1s determined to be imparred, at
which time the gain or loss previously recognised 1n other comprehensive income is transferred to the profit and loss
account.

Other income

Other income represents mcome 1eceived from Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited group companies in respect
of management services provided

Finance income

Fance income represents dividend income from mvestments.
Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable imncome or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable 1n respect of previous years.

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The followng temporary differences are not provided
for the mitial recognition of goodwill, the mitial recognition of assets or habihties that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit other than m a business combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the
expected manner of realisation o1 settlement of the carrying amount of assets and habulities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
agamst which the temporary difference can be utilised

Dividends

Dividends are only recognised as a hability to the extent that they are declared prior to the year end Unpaid dividends
that do not meet these criteria are disclosed i the notes to the Financial Statements.
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Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are 1ecognised i the company’s balance sheet when the company becomes a
party to the contractual ptovisions of the instrument

Trade receivables

Trade and othet receivables are recognised initially at fair value Subsequent to initial 1ecognition they are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes n value

Bank balances and cash comprise time deposits with an ot1ginal term of three months or less and mterest 1s calculated
by 1eference to Libor The carrying amounts represent then fan value As such no disclosure of fair value 1s required

All transactions are recognised on their transaction date

Financial liabilities and equity
Following the adoption of IAS 32, financial instruments 1ssued by the Company are treated as equity (1 e forming
patt of shareholders’ funds) only to the extent that they meet the following two conditions

a) they include no contractual obligations upon the Company to deliver cash or other financial assets or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that ate potentially
unfavourable to the Company, and

b) whete the msttument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity wmstruments, 1t 1s either a non-
dettvative that includes no obligation to delivet a vatiable numbet of the Company’s own equity isttuments
ot is a dertvative that will be settled by the Company’s exchanging a fixed amount of cash ot othet financial
assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments

To the extent that this definition 1s not met, the pioceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability Where the
instiument so classified takes the legal form of the Company’s own shates, the amounts piesented in these financial
statements for called up share capital and share ptemium account exclude amounts 1n relation to those shares.

Fmance payments associated with financial labilities are dealt with as part of interest payable and similar
chaiges Fmance payments associated with financial instruments that are classified as pait of shareholders’ funds (see
dividends policy), are dealt with as apptopriations n the teconciliation of movements n shatreholders’ funds

Trade payables

Trade payables, including balances held with group companies, ate initially measuted at fair value, and aie
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method All transactions ate 1ecognised on
theu transaction date

Foreign currencies

Tiansactions n foreign currencies are 1ecorded at the rates of exchange at the date of the transaction Monetary assets
and labihties denominated 1 foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange
prevailing at that date Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foieign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determmed Non-monetary items that are measwed
mn terms of historical cost 1n a foreign currency are not tetranslated
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27 Remuneration of directors

Directors’ temunet ations and pensions are botne by affiliates of the shareholders m the current and previous yeat. No
remuneration was paid to the directors during the period in respect to theit services to the company (2018. nil).

Darectots do not have share options and did not receive awards during the year in the form of shaies under long-term
mcentive schemes (2018 nil).

28 Other income

1 April 2018 -
31 March 2019

1 April 2017 -
31 March 2018

£000 £000
Management Fees 100 100
29 Finance income
1 April 2018 - 1 April 2017 -
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
£000 £000
Dividends 3,500 3,500
30 Expenses and auditor’s remuneration

1 April 2018 -
31 March 2019
£000

1 April 2017 -
31 March 2018
£000

Included in profit/loss are the following
Auditor’s temuneration
Audit of these financial statements

38

32

Other fees of £0.1 (2018 £0.1) were paid to KPMG LLP for tax compliance services
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31 Tax credit

A. Recognised in the profit and loss account

1 April 2018 -
31 March 2019

1 April 2017 -
31 March 2018

£000 £000
UK corporation tax
Current tax credit on mncome for the petiod 4) %)
Total current tax credit “@ S)
Deferred tax - -
Tax credit on profit ) 5

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The current tax charge foi the year 1s lower (2018. lower) than the standatd 1ate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%

(2018 19%) The differences are explained below

2019 2018

£000 £000
Profit for the year 3,482 3,478
Total tax credit @ ()
Profit excluding tax 3,478 3,473
Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2018: 19%) 661 660
Effect of.
UK dividend income (665) (665)
Total tax credit ) )

C. Factors affecting the tax charge for future periods

A reduction m the UK corporation tax 1ate fiom 20% to 19% (effective fiom 1 April 2017) was substantively enacted
on 26 October 2015 A further reduction to 18% (effective from 1 Aptil 2020) was also substantively enacted on 26
October 2015 with an additional reduction to 17% (effective from 1 April 2020) being substantively enacted on 6
September 2016 This will teduce the Company’s future current tax chaige accordingly.
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32

Investment held as Fixed Assets
Subsidiary
companies
£000
Details of movements in the year
At April 2018 161,600
Additions -
Disposals -
At 31 March 2019 161,600
Provisions for impairment:
At 1 April 2018 -
Provision for the year -
Disposals -
At 31 March 2019 -
Net book value:
At 1 April 2018 161,600
At 31 March 2019 161,600
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32 Investment held as Fixed Assets (continued)

The Company has the following subsidiaries

Subsidiary undertakings

The 1egistered address for all mvestments other than The Calcite Factory BV (Holland) 1s 66-74 London Road, Redhill,
Surrey, RHI 1LJ All investments other than The Calcite factory BV are registered and operate in England and Wales
The registered address and operations for The Calcite BV is Prodock, 9 Mozelhavenweg, Amsterdam

The principal activities for all investments are as follows.

Name of Company Activity Class of Ownership
shares
2019 2018
Directly held:
East Surrey Holdings Limited Holding Company Ordinary 100% 100%
Indirectly held:
Sutton and East Surrey Water plc Water supply Ordinary 100% 100%
Preference 0% 100%
SESW Holding Company Limited Holding Company Ordinary 100%  100%
Preference 0% 100%
Suriey Downs Property Investment Property Investment Ordmary 100% 100%
Limited
Surtey Downs Estates Limited Pioperty development Ordinary 100% 100%
Allmat (East Suriey) Limited Building supplies Ordmary 100% 100%
Advanced Minerals Limited Aggregates and the import and Ordinary 80% 80%
sale of bathroom equipment
The Cheam Group plc Holding company Ordinary 100%  100%
Pieference 79% 79%
Sutton and East Surtey Watei Non household water supply Ordinary 100% 100%
Services Limited
The Sutton District Water plc Dormant Oidinary ‘A’ 100%  100%
SES Home Services Limited Non-trading Ordmary 100%  100%
SES Business Water Limited Non-trading Ordimary 100% 100%
SES Water Limited Non-trading Ordnary 100% 100%
Calcite Factoty BV Minetals processing Ordinary 80% 80%
33 Debtors
As at 31 March 2019 2018
£000 £000
Parent company and fellow subsidiaties 1,060 1,060
Other debtors 4 15
1,064 1,075
Due within one year 1,064 1,075
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34 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
As at 31 March 2019 2018
£000 £000
Parent company and fellow subsidiaries 22 -
Accruals and deferred mcome 40 33
Other creditors 1 4
63 37
35 Capital and reserves
Share Capital
As at 31 March 2019 2018
£000 £000
Allotted, called up and fuily paid:
329,100,002 (2018. 329,100,002) ordmary shares of £0 § each 164,550 164,550
Dividends
The following mterim dividends were paid during the period.
2019 2018
£000 £000
£0.01 (2018 £0 01) per qualifying ordinary shate 3,500 3,500

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at meetings of the company.

36 Accounting estimates and judgements
Investments.

Intangible investments i subsidiary companies ate stated at cost less impairments which are shown mn note 32 of these
financial statements. The board has assessed the recoverability of loans and mvestments 1n subsidiary companies in
the period and concluded that there were no indications of impairment as at the balance sheet date.

37 Off-balance sheet arrangements

The Company 1s not party to any off-balance sheet artangements

38 Parent undertaking and ultimate parent undertaking

The company 1s 50% owned by Summit Water Limited, a company mcorporated at Vintners Place, 68 Upper Thames
Street, London, EC4V 3BJ, and 50% owned by Osaka Gas UK Limited, a company mcorporated at Ist Floor,
Carrington House, 126 - 130 Regent Street, London, WIB SSE There are no parent undertakings and no party has
control of the company

39 Subsequent events
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, 31 March 2019 management has evaluated events through March 2020, which

1s the date the company’s financial statements were available to be 1ssued There were no subsequent events that
required adjustment to or disclosure m the company’s financial statements, also refer discloser m note 24.
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